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Item 8.01    Other Events

As announced previously, on August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. (“Atkins”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods
Company (the “Company”), entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Voyage Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“Voyage Holdings”), VMG Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“VMG Blocker”, and together with Voyage Holdings, the “Target
Companies”), VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, VMG Tax-Exempt II, L.P. a Delaware limited partnership (together with
VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC, the “VMG Sellers”) and other parties (collectively, the “Sellers”). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company will
acquire Quest Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby (the “Acquisition”), via Atkins’ acquisition of 100% of the equity
interests of each of Voyage Holdings and VMG Blocker for a cash purchase price of $1.0 billion (subject to customary adjustments for the Target Companies’
levels of cash, indebtedness, net working capital and transaction expenses as of the closing). Quest Nutrition, LLC is wholly owned by Voyage Holdings.
 

This Current Report on Form 8-K is being filed by the Company to provide (i) audited consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, (ii) unaudited consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings as of June 30, 2019 and for
the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and audited consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings as of December 31, 2018, and (iii) unaudited
pro forma condensed combined financial information giving effect to the Acquisition as of May 25, 2019, for the 39-weeks ended May 25, 2019 and for the
52-weeks ended August 25, 2018.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

(a)     Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.

The audited consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are filed as
Exhibit 99.1 hereto, and incorporated herein by reference.

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and for the six
months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are filed as Exhibit 99.2 hereto, and incorporated herein by reference.

The consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Voyage Holdings' independent auditors, is attached as Exhibit 23.1 hereto.

(b)    Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information giving effect to the Acquisition as of May 25, 2019, for the 39-weeks ended
May 25, 2019 and for the 52-weeks ended August 25, 2018, are filed as Exhibit 99.3 hereto, and incorporated herein by reference.

(d)     Exhibits:

Exhibit No.  Description

   
23.1  Consent of Independent Auditors.
99.1  Audited Condensed Financial Statements of Voyage Holdings as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.
99.2

 
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Voyage Holdings as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and for
the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

99.3
 

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information as of May 25,2019, for the 39-weeks ended May 25, 2019 and for the
52-weeks ended August 25, 2018.



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

   THE SIMPLY GOOD FOODS COMPANY
    

Date: September 30, 2019 By: /s/ Todd E. Cunfer
  Name: Todd E. Cunfer
  Title: Chief Financial Officer
   (Principal Financial Officer)



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-220776 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-228696 on Form S-
3 of our report relating to the financial statements of Voyage Holdings, LLC and subsidiaries dated September 28, 2019 (which report expresses an
unmodified opinion and includes an emphasis-of-matter paragraph regarding going concern), appearing in this Current Report on Form 8-K dated September
30, 2019.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
September 30, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Managers of 
Voyage Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries 
El Segundo, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Voyage Holdings, LLC and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, members’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Voyage Holdings, LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for
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the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has cumulative net losses to date and significant negative working
capital, the Company is obligated to pay an exit payment to VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC approximately $449,999 in April 2020, and an
additional final payment related to the term loan is due in March 2020, and has stated that substantial doubt exists about its ability to continue
as a going concern.  Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and management’s plans regarding these matters are also described
in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California

September 28, 2019
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES  
  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018  
(In thousands)  
  

ASSETS  

CURRENT ASSETS:  
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,111
  Accounts receivable, net 31,286
  Other receivables 1,527
  Inventory 33,399
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,239

      Total current assets 71,562

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—NET 10,539

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—NET 3,252

OTHER ASSETS 326

TOTAL ASSETS $ 85,679

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:  
  Accounts payable $ 21,955
  Accrued expenses 11,997
  Unearned revenue 143
  Line of credit 17,000
  Current portion of long-term debt 7,087

      Total current liabilities 58,182

LONG-TERM DEBT—Net of current portion 46,978
DERIVATIVE 6,741
SUBORDINATED DEBT 9,686
MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS 337,338
DEFERRED RENT AND TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE 5,019
OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES—Net of current portion 21

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 12)  

MEMBERS' DEFICIT (378,286)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT $ 85,679

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  

5



VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018  
(In thousands)  

REVENUE—NET $ 296,292

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 213,044

GROSS MARGIN 83,248

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 72,895

NET LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 548

OPERATING INCOME 9,805

OTHER EXPENSE 20

DERIVATIVE VALUATION GAIN (459)

INTEREST EXPENSE 5,958

INTEREST EXPENSE RELATED TO MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
UNITS 65,566

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (61,280)

TAX EXPENSE 41

NET LOSS $ (61,321)
  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' DEFICIT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018  
(In thousands)  

BALANCE—January 1, 2018 $ (319,008)
  

  

Distributions (5)
  

Employee stock compensation 2,048
  

Net loss (61,321)
  

BALANCE—December 31, 2018 $ (378,286)
  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018  
(In thousands)  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
Net loss $ (61,321)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:  

Depreciation and amortization 752
Loss on disposition on property and equipment 548
Stock-based compensation 2,009
Derivative valuation gain (459)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 548
Accretion of mandatorily redeemable preferred units 65,566

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  
Accounts receivable (7,878)
Other receivables (129)
Inventory 30,540
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets 687
Accounts payable 1,061
Accrued expenses (5,499)
Unearned revenue (722)
Other long-term liabilities 5,019

         Net cash provided by operating activities 30,722

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
Payments for the acquisition of property and equipment (10,639)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 6,823
Payments for the acquisition of internal-use software (2,711)

         Net cash used in investing activities (6,527)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
Borrowings under line of credit 3,000
Payments under line of credit (16,900)
Payments on term loan (14,104)
Payments of capital lease obligations (99)
Distributions paid (5)

         Net cash used in financing activities (28,108)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,913)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,024

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF YEAR $ 2,111
  

 (Continued)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018  
(In thousands)  
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:  
  

     Cash paid during the year for interest $ 5,422
  

     Cash paid during the year for taxes $ 59
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:  
  

    Acquisition of property and equipment through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 258
  

    Acquisition of software through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 458
  

  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  (Concluded)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

FORMATION OF BUSINESS—Voyage Holdings, LLC (the “Company”) was organized and established as a limited liability
company on March 19, 2015, in the state of Delaware to effectuate a minority interest sale (“Transaction”) in Voyage
Holdings, LLC to a private equity firm on March 24, 2015. Voyage Holdings, LLC has five ownership groups: one member
(288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units), another member (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units), various trusts (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units) (collectively, the “Founding Members”), VMG Voyage Holdings,
LLC (“VMG”) (133,333 units, or 100%, of Class A Preferred Units and 133,333 units, or 18.8%, of Class C Common Units),
and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC (16,600,000 units, or 100%, of Class M Common Units). Aside from the holders of
Class M Common Units, which are not entitled to vote, the holders of Class A Preferred Units, Class B Preferred units (except
Class B Preferred Units held by one member) and Class C Common Units shall be entitled to vote together as a single class.

Quest Nutrition, LLC (“Quest”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Voyage Holdings, LLC. Distributions are made from the
Company to its Founding Members, VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC for the payment of
income taxes and other approved distributions, funded from the Company’s wholly owned and consolidated operating
company, Quest Nutrition, LLC. On March 13, 2018, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Quest Nutrition
Limited, in London, England.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company refinanced the business through the issuance of a senior secured credit
facility (see Note 8) to pay certain member distributions, extinguish existing indebtedness, and to provide additional
operational financing to support Quest Nutrition, LLC’s working capital needs.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY—The Company distributes a variety of protein-based food products in the United States and
worldwide. The Company utilizes outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its protein-based food products.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION—The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include the
consolidated financial position and results of operations of the Company and its wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”).

LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN—The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in
the normal course of business. As of the date these financials are issued, the Company has cumulative net losses to date and
significant negative working capital. As fully described below in Note 9, the Company is obligated to pay an exit payment to
VMG of approximately $449,999 in April 2020. Further, as described in Note 8, an additional balloon payment related to the
term loan is due in March 2020. As a result, there is a substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
 
The Company’s plans include using the proceeds, in part, of the sale of its equity to fund the exit payment and term loan. As
described in Note 15, the Company entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement to sell 100% of its equity interest for a
cash purchase price of $1,000,000. Although management believes such plans should provide the Company sufficient
financing to meet its needs, successful completion of such plans is dependent on factors outside of the Company’s control. As
such, management cannot conclude that such plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. As a result, management has concluded that the aforementioned conditions, raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are
issued.
 
Failure to obtain additional funding would result in cash flows to be insufficient to fund the Company’s obligations and
continue to raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2018 do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of assets, or
the amounts and classification of liabilities, or any adjustments that may result from uncertainty related to the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

USE OF ESTIMATES—The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company’s estimates, which are
subject to varying degrees of judgment, include the allowances for doubtful accounts, chargebacks and allowances, valuation
of inventories, useful lives associated with long-lived assets, valuation of derivative liabilities, determination of fair values of
certain financial instruments for which there is no active market, accrued purchase commitments, and the valuation and
assumptions underlying stock-based compensation. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates compared to
historical experience and trends, which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities.
In addition, the Company regularly engages the assistance of valuation specialists in concluding on fair value measurements in
connection with stock-based compensation and the valuation of derivative liabilities.

CONCENTRATIONS—At each reporting period, the Company reevaluates each customer’s ability to satisfy credit
obligations and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the evaluations. Two customers comprised
approximately 26% of the Company’s net
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revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018. Three customers comprised approximately 56% of the Company’s accounts
receivable, net, balance as of December 31, 2018. Sales to international customers represented 10% of the Company’s net
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, two suppliers represented approximately 71% of the Company’s aggregate purchases.
All of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in the United States of America.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY—Effective January 1, 2018, the Company made a voluntary change to its accounting
policy for inventory cost basis. Under the previous accounting policy, inventory items were recorded on a moving-average
cost basis. Historically, the Company was a manufacturer of its finished products. At the end of 2017, the Company stopped
manufacturing, and moved to utilizing outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its finished products. These co-
manufacturers became fully turnkey in early 2018. Based on these manufacturing changes, the Company determined that a
change from a moving-average cost basis to a standard cost basis for recording inventory items is preferable because it
provides more current information to the users of the consolidated financial statements. The effect of this change in
accounting policy amounted to $2,858. In accordance with applicable accounting guidance, a change in accounting cost basis
is treated as a change in accounting principle and requires retrospective application. The Company determined that it is
impracticable to apply the effects of the change in accounting cost basis to periods prior to January 1, 2018; therefore, the
effect of this change in accounting policy is included in cost of products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2018.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. The majority of payments due from
financial institutions for the settlement of credit card and debit card transactions are processed within two business days and
are therefore classified as cash and cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at
times, may exceed the amounts insured by US government agencies. The Company has not experienced any losses on its
deposits of cash during the year ended December 31, 2018.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND OTHER CHARGEBACK ALLOWANCES—The Company maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required
payments. The Company determines the adequacy of this allowance by regularly reviewing the composition of its aged
accounts receivable and evaluating individual customer receivables, considering the customer’s financial condition, the
customer’s credit history, current economic conditions, and other known factors. Additionally, the Company records
allowances for estimated returns and chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, and
promotional allowances. Chargebacks and allowances in excess of individual customer accounts receivable balances are
classified as accrued customer credits in accounts payable.

OTHER RECEIVABLES—Other receivables include short-term receivables from co-manufactures for the sale of raw
materials on hand. These activities are not considered to be in the normal course of the Company’s business; therefore, no
revenue was recognized for these transactions during the year ended December 31, 2018.
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INVENTORY—Inventory consists of raw materials and finished products and is valued at the lower of standard cost or net
realizable value. Raw materials include the cost of raw materials and freight. Externally manufactured finished products
include the cost of the product, including related tolling, and freight. The Company provides for estimated losses from
obsolete or slow-moving inventories and writes down the cost of inventory at the time such determinations are made to its
estimated net realizable value. Reserves are estimated based upon inventory on hand, historical sales activity, disposition
strategies, and the expected net realizable value.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS—Prepaid expenses and other current assets include the
prepayment of various operating expenses, such as rent, insurance, and property taxes, which are expensed when the operating
cost is realized. Additionally, prepaid expenses include deposits for inventory purchases for raw materials, which totaled
$1,690 as of December 31, 2018.    

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—Property and equipment, including certain equipment under capital lease agreements, are
valued at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the assets’ estimated useful life
or lease term. When property and equipment are retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related
accumulated depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. When property and equipment have been identified to be sold, but
have not yet been sold, the property and equipment are classified as held for sale, and recorded at their respective expected fair
values less cost to sell, based on anticipated transaction amounts. Depreciation is ceased for assets held for sale. If the
expected fair values are less than the respective carrying values, an impairment charge is recorded in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policies for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Machinery and equipment    3 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements    Shorter of the life of lease or useful life
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment    3 - 10 years

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that increase the value or productive capacity of
assets are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies above.

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—Software consists of costs incurred for the development and implementation of internal-use
software. Costs incurred related to software design and application development are capitalized and amortized over an
estimated useful life of two to five years. Costs incurred related to ongoing maintenance, training, and post-implementation
activities are expensed as incurred (see Note 6).

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS—The Company assesses the carrying value of its long-lived assets, consisting
primarily of property and equipment and internal-use software, when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances
may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset; a significant change
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in the extent or manner in which an asset is used; a significant change in legal factors or in the business climate; a significant
deterioration in the amount of revenue or cash flows expected to be generated from a group of assets; a current expectation
that, more likely than not, a long-lived asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously
estimated useful life; or any other significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of
assets may not be recoverable. The Company performs impairment testing at the asset group level that represents the lowest
level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable and the expected
undiscounted future cash flows attributable to the asset group are less than the carrying amount of the asset group, an
impairment loss equal to the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value is recorded. No impairments were
identified in the year ended December 31, 2018.

LEASES—The Company recognizes rent expense related to its noncancelable operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the original contractual term, including the date of physical possession and any renewal periods if the probability of renewal is
reasonably assured, as determined by management. Rent expense includes free rent, rent escalations, concessions, and tenant
allowances. The difference between the cumulative expense recognized and the payments made is recognized as deferred rent
and is included in deferred rent and tenant improvement allowance in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2018. Allowances received from landlords for leasehold improvements are also recorded as deferred rent, and
are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term as an offset to rent expense.

CAPITAL LEASES—Leases are classified as capital leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee (see Note 10). All other leases are classified as operating leases (see Note 12). Assets
acquired and held under capital leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding current and long-term liabilities are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as accrued
expenses and obligations under capital leases, net of current portion, respectively. Interest costs, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to interest expense over the term
of the relevant lease.

UNEARNED REVENUE—Unearned revenue relates to deposits received primarily from international customers for sales
orders that have not been shipped as of the balance sheet date. These amounts are recognized as revenue when the related
sales orders are shipped.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS—Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses the following hierarchy in measuring the fair value of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, focusing on the most observable inputs when available:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets
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that are not active for identical or similar assets and liabilities, or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement of the
assets or liabilities. Inputs reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and
the risk inherent in the inputs to the model.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

FAIR VALUE METHODS—The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. The carrying amount of the term loan (see Note 8) and line of credit approximates fair value as the
contractual interest rates are based on variable market rates, which are comparable to rates of returns for instruments of similar
credit risk. The fair value of the subordinated notes (see Note 8) from related parties is not readily determinable by virtue of
the nature of the related parties’ relationship with the Company. The fair values of the derivative (see Note 12) and stock-
based compensation (see Note 11) are determined at the end of each reporting period based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy. The Company has accounted for the obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability (see Note
9) measured at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet (mandatorily redeemable preferred units). There were
no transfers between any of the levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Certain assets, including long-lived assets and internal-use software, are also subject to measurement at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis if they are deemed to be impaired as a result of an impairment review.

REVENUE RECOGNITION—Based on an existing arrangement, the Company recognizes revenue at the time merchandise
is delivered to its customers, or when merchandise is shipped based on the terms of the arrangement with customers; the prices
are fixed and determinable; payments are reasonably assured; and no further performance obligation exists. Shipping and
handling charges billed to customers are included in net sales, with the related costs included in cost of products sold. Taxes
collected from customers are accounted for on a net basis and are excluded from revenue.

The Company records reductions to revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for estimated returns
and allowances, including chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, promotional
allowances and rebate programs. The Company estimates returns and allowances based on the Company’s history of returns
and allowances. Estimated returns and allowances and ultimate losses may vary from actual results.

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD—Cost of products sold includes costs for inventory and related valuation adjustments,
warehouse-related overhead, warehouse-related rent, depreciation and amortization, supplies, repairs and maintenance,
inventory reserves, inventory disposals, and
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freight. Freight costs from vendors to warehouses are capitalized within inventory and included in cost of products sold in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES—Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of sales
activities related to the Company’s various distribution channels, including agency commissions, expenses related to the
Company’s branding initiatives, media, trade shows, video production, print publications and targeted online advertising
through sponsored search, display advertising, email marketing campaigns, and other promotional initiatives. Selling and
marketing expenses also consist of payroll and related benefit costs. The Company expenses marketing costs as incurred.
Media production costs are expensed the first time the advertisement is aired. Advertising costs included within selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations amounted to $13,648 during
the year ended December 31, 2018.

        
The Company charges research and development costs as an expense when incurred. Such costs amounted to $2,710 for the
year ended December 31, 2018, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses relate primarily to payroll and related benefit costs and stock-based
compensation expense for general and administrative personnel, including research and development, accounting and finance,
operations, human resources and customer service, as well as professional and consulting fees and other general overhead and
facility costs, including insurance, utilities, rent and information technology expenses.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION—The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense based on the grant‐date
fair value of units over the applicable service period. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to measure
the fair value, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Stock-based compensation expense for employee
awards which vest based upon continued employment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period,
which is generally the vesting period, and is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

Stock-based compensation expense for nonemployee awards is based on the then-current fair values of the units at each
financial reporting date, based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Compensation recorded during each period is
adjusted in subsequent periods for changes in the units’ fair value until the units are settled. Such compensation adjustments
for changes in fair value are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations.

Key input assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of the units include the
Company’s estimated equity value, the expected unit’s vesting term, the expected volatility over the expected unit’s vesting
term, and the risk‐free interest rate over the unit’s vesting term. The Company has determined the fair values of its equity,
based in part on the work of third-party valuation specialists, through the use of a discounted cash flow model. The expected
term is determined using the contractual life of the unit and the vesting period. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yields
in effect at the time of grant of US Treasury securities with maturities similar to the expected term of the units. Estimates
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of fair value are not intended to predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by persons who receive equity
awards. The Company accounts for forfeitures when they occur.

The determination of stock-based compensation is inherently uncertain and subjective and involves the application of
valuation models and assumptions requiring the use of judgment. If the Company had made different assumptions, its stock-
based compensation expense and its net income could have been significantly different.

INCOME TAXES—As discussed above in Note 1, Voyage Holding, LLC was formed as a holding company for the
partnership interests of Quest Nutrition, LLC. Voyage Holding, LLC is organized as limited liability company, and therefore,
is not subject to federal taxes as the profits and losses are passed directly to its members. The Company is, however, a taxable
entity under certain state jurisdictions, which are not material to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The
Company files a federal income tax return and income tax returns in certain state jurisdictions as required. The Company’s
income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities for the periods 2015 through 2018 for federal, state, and
local jurisdictions. Quest’s income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities for the periods 2013 through
2018 for federal, state, and local jurisdictions.

There was no material impact to the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements, or its subsidiary, from the
enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general and administrative expenses. There were no uncertain tax benefits recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. No material increase in uncertain tax benefits is expected to occur within the next twelve months.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS—In March 2019, December 2018, July 2018 and February 2016, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2019-01, No. 2018-20,
ASU No. 2018-11, ASU No. 2018-10 and ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), respectively, which requires lessees to
recognize on the balance sheet assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent with
current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee
primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires
only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on
the balance sheet. This new guidance will take effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. As originally
written, this guidance shall be applied at the beginning of the earliest period presented using the modified retrospective
approach, which includes a number of practical expedients that an entity may elect to apply. Early application of this guidance
is permitted. In July 2018, the FASB made targeted improvements to the standard, including providing an additional and
optional transition method. Under this method, an entity initially applies the standard at the adoption date, including the
election of certain transition reliefs, and recognizes a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
in the period of adoption. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
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In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles–Goodwill and Other–Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-
40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract, to help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement (hosting
arrangement) by providing guidance for determining when the arrangement includes a software license. This guidance is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and the interim periods there within. Early
application of this guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework–Changes
to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application of this
guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
disclosures.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services
from nonemployees. The amendments specify that Topic 718 applies to all share-based payment transactions in which a
grantor acquires goods or services to be used or consumed in a grantor’s own operations by issuing share-based payment
awards. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 and the interim periods there within.
Early application of this guidance is permitted but no earlier than an entity’s adoption of Topic 606. The Company does not
currently issue share-based payment awards for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees, but the Company will
evaluate the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures in the future if such transactions occur.

In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), Leases (Topic 840), and Leases (Topic 842): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to the Staff
Announcement at the July 20, 2017 EITF Meeting and Rescission of Prior SEC Staff Announcements and Observer
Comments. The SEC Observer said that the SEC staff would not object if entities that are considered public business entities
only because their financial statements are required to be included in another entity’s SEC filing use the effective dates for
private companies when they adopt Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Customers with Contracts
and ASC 842, Leases. This would include entities whose financial statements are included in another entity’s SEC filing
because they are significant acquirees under Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X. The effective date for these entities is the same as
the effective date and transition requirements for the amendments for ASU No. 2014-09 (discussed below) and ASU No.
2016-02 (discussed above).

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification
Accounting, clarifying when a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as a
modification. This guidance requires modification accounting if the fair value, vesting condition or the classification of the
award is not the same immediately before and after a change to the terms and conditions of the award. The Company adopted
this guidance for the interim periods within and the year
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ended December 31, 2018, and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

In December 2016, May 2016, April 2016, March 2016, August 2015 and May 2014, the FASB issued ASUs No. 2016-20,
No. 2016-12, No. 2016-10, No. 2016-08, No. 2015-14 and No. 2014-09, Revenue from Customers with Contracts (Topic 606),
respectively, to amend the accounting guidance for revenue recognition. This guidance requires revenue recognition to depict
the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance sets forth a new revenue recognition model that requires
identifying the contract, identifying the performance obligations, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to performance obligations, and recognizing the revenue upon satisfaction of performance obligations. The amendments
in the ASU can be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or on a modified retrospective basis
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at the date of the initial application along with additional
disclosures. These new standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim
reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company plans to adopt this ASU
on January 1, 2019, on an annual basis, using the modified retrospective method, and does not expect a material impact to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments, to provide guidance for areas where there is diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts
and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted this guidance beginning
January 1, 2018 and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU added a new impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss
(CECL) model) that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes an
allowance for its estimate of expected credit losses and applies to most debt instruments, trade receivables, lease receivables,
financial guarantee contracts, and other loan commitments. The CECL model does not have a minimum threshold for
recognition of impairment losses and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on assets that have a low risk of loss.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, including the interim periods there within. The
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of these changes on the consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following at December 31, 2018:

Accounts receivable $ 44,354
Estimated chargebacks and allowances (12,688)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (380)
  

Accounts Receivable, Net $ 31,286
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Bad debt expense for the year ended December 31, 2018, amounted to $13, and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 4 – INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following at December 31, 2018:

Raw materials and packaging materials $ 9,557
Finished goods 23,842
  

Inventory $ 33,399

NOTE 5 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2018:

Machinery and equipment $ 447
Furniture, fixtures, computers and equipment 3,469
Leasehold improvements 8,008
 11,924
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,385)
  

Property and Equipment, Net $ 10,539

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company abandoned certain production machinery and equipment, furniture,
fixtures and equipment, and leasehold improvement as part of transition of the production process to co-manufacturers. The
Company has recorded related gains and losses on assets disposed of prior to December 31, 2018, in net loss on disposition of
property and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $746 for the year ended December 31, 2018, with $98 included in cost of
products sold and $648 included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations.

NOTE 6 – INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE - NET

Internal-use software, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2018:

Internal-use software costs $ 3,517
Less: accumulated amortization (265)
  

Internal-Use Software, Net $ 3,252
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The total amortization expense for capitalized internal-use software costs for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $6, and
is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
Estimated amortization expense for each of the following five years is as follows:

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

2019 $ 651
2020 651
2021 650
2022 650
2023 650

  

Total $ 3,252

NOTE 7 – ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2018:

Accrued payroll and payroll-related costs $ 4,609
Accrued loss on purchase commitments 3,334
Accrued inventory purchases 531
Accrued logistics 516
Accrued other 3,007
       
Accrued Expenses $ 11,997

NOTE 8 – INDEBTEDNESS

As part of the transaction described in Note 1, on March 25, 2015, the Company recapitalized the business through the
issuance of a senior secured credit facility and extinguished existing indebtedness on the former revolving line of credit and
former notes payable with a former lender.

On March 25, 2015, the Company entered into a credit agreement in the total amount of $120,000 with a syndicate of lenders
(the “Lenders”). A term loan for $95,000 and a revolving line of credit for $25,000 were issued (the “Credit Agreement”). The
Credit Agreement was amended on October 22, 2015, increasing the revolving line of credit to $35,000 and increasing the
aggregate credit facility under the Credit Agreement to $130,000. The Credit Agreement allows the Company to borrow
additional amounts from the Lenders through standby letters of credit and swing line loans, but the standby letters of credit
borrowed reduce the availability of the revolving line of credit. The Credit Agreement has quarterly contractual maturities
through March 2020.

On April 29, 2016, the Credit Agreement was further amended to authorize the Company to enter into a note purchase
agreement with the Founding Members, whereby the Founding Members agreed to purchase from the Company unsecured
subordinated promissory notes (the “Notes”) due in 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of up to $20,000. The Company
issued unsecured subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $9,686 to the
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Founding Members on April 29, 2016, maturing on September 25, 2020. The Notes bore interest at a rate of 10% per annum
during the year ended December 31, 2016. This rate decreased to 5% per annum beginning on January 1, 2017. Interest on the
Notes is payable quarterly beginning June 30, 2016, and principal payments or prepayments before the maturity date are
subject to certain restrictions. For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense related to the Notes was $484 and is
included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Company is required to meet certain financial and nonfinancial covenants in accordance with the terms of the amended
Credit Agreement. In addition, the Lenders have been granted a security interest in all assets of the Company. As of December
31, 2018, the Company was not in compliance with certain covenants under the amended Credit Agreement. Subsequent to
December 31, 2018, the Company obtained a waiver as of December 31, 2018, and an additional amendment to the amended
Credit Agreement to certain of the financial and nonfinancial covenants beginning March 31, 2019. It is probable that the
Company will meet its financial and nonfinancial covenants from the date of these consolidated financial statements going
forward.

LINE OF CREDIT—The line of credit bears a variable rate of interest at the London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
monthly floating rate, plus 3% (5.53% per annum as of December 31, 2018). The Company is also subject to an unused
commitment fee equal to 0.5% based on the aggregate amount of available revolving loan commitments. The outstanding
standby letters of credit balance as of December 31, 2018, amounted to $5,200, reducing the available revolving line of credit
to $29,800 before outstanding draws. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had an outstanding balance of $17,000 on the
revolving line of credit, and the remaining availability is $12,800. For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense
related to the revolving line of credit was $1,484, and the unused commitment fee expense related to the revolving line of
credit was $22, both of which are recorded in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

TERM LOAN—The term loan of $95,000 bears a variable rate of interest at the LIBOR monthly floating rate, plus 3.5%
(6.03% per annum at December 31, 2018). The term loan is payable in equal quarterly installments of principal of $1,914, plus
interest, with the remaining balance due on March 25, 2020. The term loan is included in long-term debt in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and is net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $712 as of December 31, 2018. Current portion of
unamortized debt issuance costs of $570 is included in current portion of long-term debt and noncurrent portion of
unamortized debt issuance cost of $142 is included in long-term debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Interest
expense related to the term loan amounted to $3,395 and expenses for the amortization of deferred financing fees related to the
issuance of the credit facility totaled $548 in the year ended December 31, 2018.

22



Scheduled maturities of the term loan for each of the years succeeding December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2019 $ 7,657
2020 47,120

  

Total Term Loan $ 54,777

NOTE 9 – MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS

In regard to the 133,333 Class A Preferred Units that were sold to VMG on March 25, 2015, the Company is obligated to
make a payment on the date that is 30 days following the 5th anniversary of the sale (the “VMG Exit Payment”). Under
certain conditions, the Company may defer a portion of the VMG Exit Payment. The Company does not expect to meet those
conditions; therefore, the payment is due in April 2020. If the Company defaults on the VMG Exit Payment, Class C
Common Unit members receive certain additional Class C Common Units and interest accrues thereon.

The Company has accounted for this obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability measured at fair
value at inception in 2015 and each period thereafter through the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with accounting guidance for distinguishing liabilities from equity. This liability will be accreted to the redemption amount,
with any accretion amounts being charged to interest expense within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
The Company has not separately bifurcated or accounted for the deferral or default features related to the VMG Exit Payment
within the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

This payment is equal to three times (3.0x) the aggregate amount of capital contributions made with respect to the Class A
Preferred Units, minus the sum of all prior distributions made with respect to the Class A Preferred Units (other than tax
distributions), plus any tax distributions that the holder of the Class A Preferred Units is owed with respect to net taxable
income allocated to the Class A Preferred Units for any period prior to the date that the VMG Exit Payment is actually paid.
Upon full payment of the VMG Exit Payment, the Class A Preferred Units and Class C Common Units purchased by VMG
from the Founding Members pursuant to the sale shall be cancelled, and the holders shall have no further rights to
distributions and shall no longer be members of the Company.

The mandatorily redeemable financial instrument was initially recorded on March 31, 2015, as a liability, for $150,000. As of
December 31, 2018, the liability associated with the Class A Preferred Units increased to $337,338. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, interest expense related to mandatorily redeemable preferred units was $65,566. If the Company were to
settle the liability as of December 31, 2018, the Company will have to pay VMG the full (3.0x) payment of $449,999. A
change in the fair value of the Class A Preferred Units has no impact on the settlement price of this instrument.

23



NOTE 10 – OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE

The Company leases certain technological equipment under capital lease obligations. The capital lease obligations have been
recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. At December 31, 2018, the carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation of the leased technological equipment were $242 and $141, respectively. Depreciation expense on
assets recorded under capital lease was $81 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Annual future minimum obligations under the capital leases as of December 31, 2018, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2019 $ 89
2020 22

Total minimum lease payments 111
Less: amount representing interest (5)
Present value of obligations under capital lease 106
Less: current portion (85)
  

Long-Term Obligations Under Capital Lease $ 21

Interest expense on capital lease obligations amounted to $9 for the year ended December 31, 2018, and is included in interest
expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 11 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 30, 2017, the Company’s limited liability company agreement was amended to authorize the grant of 16,600,000
Class M Common Units of the limited liability company. Certain Quest Employees, as defined in the agreement, are eligible
to be granted units, which are intended to qualify and shall be treated as profit interests. Thus, no capital contributions are
necessary. The Company believes that such unit grants align the interest of its employees with those of its shareholders.
Generally, the granted units vest in equal installments on each of the five-year anniversaries following either the date of hire,
the date of grant or another specified date, which is identified in each grant agreement. The granted units provide for
accelerated vesting if there is a Sale Transaction as defined in the agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to units granted
in the amount of $2,009, of which $2,048 of expense relates to current employees and $39 of income relates to non-
employees. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
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The following table summarizes the granted unit activity for the year ended December 31, 2018:

 
Class M

Common Units

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair

Value
Non-vested—December 31, 2017 9,804,000 $ 1.18
   

Granted 4,130,000 0.53
Vested (2,392,400) 1.10
Forfeited (1,903,480) 1.15
        

Non-vested—December 31, 2018 9,638,120 $ 0.92

As of December 31, 2018, total unrecognized stock‐based compensation cost related to unvested units granted was
approximately $7,992, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.7 years.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES—The Company has operating leases for its warehouses, corporate office spaces, and certain equipment, some of
which contain free rent periods and escalation clauses. Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term
with the difference between the rent paid and the straight-line rent expense recorded as a deferred rent liability.

During November 2017, the Company entered into a new office facility lease for its headquarters. The lease commenced on
June 1, 2018; the lease term is 131 months; and contains free rent periods, escalation clauses and tenant improvement
allowances.

During May 2018, the Company entered into a new warehouse facility lease for a distribution center. The lease commenced
on September 6, 2018; the lease term is 79 months; and contains free rent periods and escalation clauses.

As of December 31, 2018, the future minimum rental payments under noncancelable leases are as follows, including the new
office facility and new warehouse facility:

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

2019 $ 2,177
2020 3,104
2021 3,132
2022 3,004
2023 3,084

Thereafter 13,777
  

Total $ 28,278

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2018, amounted to $3,882, of which $287 is included in cost of products sold
and $3,595 is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations.
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PURCHASE COMMITMENTS—As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a remaining contractual commitment of
$4,640 for a raw material used in the production of protein bars that requires minimum purchases through April 2019. No
contractual loss liability for future raw material deliveries is deemed necessary; thus, no contractual commitments for this raw
material have been recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has estimated and recorded additional purchase commitments related to the purchase
of inventory and packaging that are considered nonrecoverable. The total amount is $3,334, and is included in accrued
expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet (see Note 7).

DERIVATIVE—Quest entered into a loan agreement dated June 6, 2012, by and between the Company and Montage Capital
II L.P. (“Montage”), as amended on August 11, 2014, March 24, 2015, and September 25, 2017 (as amended, the “Montage
Credit Agreement”). Under the Montage Credit Agreement, the Company is obligated to pay Montage a cash fee (“Success
Fee”) equal to a defined percentage (“Success Percentage”) of the proceeds received by the members of the Company raised
in connection with a Liquidity Event (as defined in the Montage Credit Agreement).

During 2015, the Company executed a partial Liquidity Event upon sale of minority interest of units in the Company, which
resulted in the cash payment of $2,775 to Montage. This cash payment represented a partial Liquidity Event and reduced the
Success Percentage.

The settlement of the Success Fee meets the definition of a derivative recognized at fair value and was remeasured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value. The fair value of the derivative value was determined based on the Success Percentage of
the equity value of the Company. The equity value of the Company was determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.
Significant assumptions made in the analysis included estimates of revenue growth, operating margin, and the selected
discount rate. Based on these assumptions, the fair value of the derivative was $6,741 as of December 31, 2018, and is
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The change in fair value resulted in a gain of $459 for the year
ended December 31, 2018, which is included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, and is classified as a
non-cash change in derivative value under operating activities in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows.

There are no other loans, obligations or commitments outstanding related to the Montage Credit Agreement as of December
31, 2018.

LITIGATION—From time to time the Company is involved in legal actions arising from its normal operations and is
presented with claims for damages arising out of its actions. Except for the matter described below, the Company cannot
predict the ultimate outcome, or reasonably estimate the probability or the range of loss, if any. If legal actions are not
resolved in the Company’s favor, losses arising from the results of litigation or settlements, as well as ongoing defense costs,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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On or around June 16, 2015, a putative class action case was filed in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles,
alleging wage and hour violations, including, but not limited to, claims related to meal and rest period violations. The
Company settled the putative class action case and made a settlement payment in the amount of $1,238 in July 2018.

NOTE 13 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee benefit plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”),
whereby participants may contribute a percentage of their compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed under the
Code (the “Plan”). During January 2018, the Plan was amended to allow for employer matching contributions. The Company
expensed $431 of employer matching contributions during the year ended December 31, 2018, which is included in selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 14 – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The minority interest holder in the Company charges the Company an annual management fee of $250, which is included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Certain members of management serve as directors of a foundation, a Delaware non-stock corporation and Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3) tax-exempt nonprofit organization, which was formed in December 2015, whose principal activity is
metabolic studies. The Company expensed $723 that was paid to the foundation during the year ended December 31, 2018,
related to research and development expenses, and such amounts are included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Company issued unsecured subordinated notes in the amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016 (see
Note 8).

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements
were available to be issued.

On August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement with the Company along
with VMG Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation and related party of the Company. Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. is a wholly
owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods Company. Pursuant to the Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement, The Simply
Good Foods Company will acquire Quest Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby via Atkins
Nutritionals, Inc.’s acquisition of 100% of the equity interests of each of Voyage Holdings, LLC and VMG Quest Blocker, Inc.
for a cash purchase price of $1,000,000, which is expected to close before the end of fiscal 2019. The proceeds of which will
be used, in part, to fund the VMG Exit Payment and the outstanding debt.

******
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017  
(In thousands)  
  

ASSETS  

CURRENT ASSETS:  
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,024
  Accounts receivable, net 23,463
  Other receivables 4,615
  Inventory 63,939
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,014
  Assets held for sale 4,054

      Total current assets 106,109

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—NET 433

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—NET 264

OTHER ASSETS 238

TOTAL ASSETS $ 107,044

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:  
  Accounts payable $ 20,638
  Accrued expenses 17,263
  Unearned revenue 865
  Line of credit 30,900
  Current portion of long-term debt 7,887

      Total current liabilities 77,553

LONG-TERM DEBT—Net of current portion 59,734
DERIVATIVE 7,200
SUBORDINATED DEBT 9,686
MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS 271,772
OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES—Net of current portion 107

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)  

MEMBERS' DEFICIT (319,008)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT $ 107,044

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017  
(In thousands)  

REVENUE—NET $ 274,072

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 192,204

GROSS MARGIN 81,868

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 70,565

NET LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 5,942

IMPAIRMENT LOSS 27,016

OPERATING LOSS (21,655)

OTHER INCOME—NET (228)

DERIVATIVE VALUATION GAIN (4,023)

INTEREST EXPENSE 5,242

INTEREST EXPENSE RELATED TO MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
UNITS 52,822

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (75,468)

TAX EXPENSE 141

NET LOSS $ (75,609)
  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' DEFICIT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017  
(In thousands)  

BALANCE—January 1, 2017 $ (244,266)
  

  

Distributions (37)
  

Employee stock compensation 904
  

Net loss (75,609)
  

BALANCE—December 31, 2017 $ (319,008)
  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017  
(In thousands)  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
Net loss $ (75,609)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:  

Depreciation and amortization 6,123
Loss on disposition on property and equipment 5,942
Impairment loss 27,016
Stock-based compensation 1,453
Derivative valuation gain (4,023)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 463
Purchase commitment loss reversal (18,301)
Accretion of mandatorily redeemable preferred units 52,822

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  
Accounts receivable (6,920)
Other receivables (992)
Inventory (11,902)
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets 43
Accounts payable 276
Accrued expenses 8,751
Unearned revenue 395
Other long-term liabilities (1,184)

         Net cash used in operating activities (15,647)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
Payments for the acquisition of property and equipment (538)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 1,807
Payments for the acquisition of internal-use software (139)

         Net cash provided by investing activities 1,130

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
Borrowings under line of credit 27,600
Payments under line of credit (5,700)
Payments on term loan (8,449)
Debt issuance costs (544)
Payments of capital lease obligations (393)
Distributions paid (37)

         Net cash provided by financing activities 12,477

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (2,040)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,064

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF YEAR $ 6,024

 (Continued)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017  
(In thousands)  
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:  
  

     Cash paid during the year for interest $ 4,676
  

     Cash paid during the year for taxes $ 95
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:  
  

    Acquisition of equipment under capital lease obligations $ 236
  

    Acquisition of software through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 175
  

  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  (Concluded)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

FORMATION OF BUSINESS—Voyage Holdings, LLC (the “Company”) was organized and established as a limited liability
company on March 19, 2015, in the state of Delaware to effectuate a minority interest sale (“Transaction”) in Voyage
Holdings, LLC to a private equity firm on March 24, 2015. Voyage Holdings, LLC has five ownership groups: one member
(288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units), another member (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units), various trusts (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units) (collectively, the “Founding Members”), VMG Voyage Holdings,
LLC (“VMG”) (133,333 units, or 100%, of Class A Preferred units and 133,333 units, or 18.8%, of Class C Common Units),
and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC (16,600,000 units, or 100%, of Class M Common Units). Aside from the holders of
Class M Common Units, which are not entitled to vote, the holders of Class A Preferred Units, Class B Preferred Units (except
Class B Preferred Units held by one member) and Class C Common Units shall be entitled to vote together as a single class.

Quest Nutrition, LLC (“Quest”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Voyage Holdings, LLC. Distributions are made from the
Company to its Founding Members, VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC for the payment of
income taxes and other approved distributions, funded from the Company’s wholly owned and consolidated operating
company, Quest Nutrition, LLC.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company refinanced the business through the issuance of a senior secured credit
facility (see Note 8) to pay certain member distributions, extinguish existing indebtedness, and to provide additional
operational financing to support Quest Nutrition, LLC’s working capital needs.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY—The Company manufactures and distributes a variety of protein-based food products in the United
States and worldwide. During December 2017, the Company transitioned from being the primary manufacturer to utilizing
outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its protein-based food products. The Company stopped internal
manufacturing as of December 31, 2017.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION—The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include the
consolidated financial position and results of operations of the Company and its wholly owned and controlled subsidiary. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”).

LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN—The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in
the normal course of business. As of the date these financials are issued, the Company has cumulative net losses to date and
significant negative working capital. As fully described below in Note 9, the Company is obligated to pay an exit payment to
VMG of approximately $449,999 in April 2020. Further, as described in Note 8, an additional balloon payment related to the
term loan is due in March 2020. As a result, there is a substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
 
The Company’s plans include using the proceeds, in part, of the sale of its equity to fund the exit payment and term loan. As
described in Note 16, the Company entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement to sell 100% of its equity interest for a
cash purchase price of $1,000,000. Although management believes such plans should provide the Company sufficient
financing to meet its needs, successful completion of such plans is dependent on factors outside of the Company’s control. As
such, management cannot conclude that such plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. As a result, management has concluded that the aforementioned conditions, raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are
issued.
 
Failure to obtain additional funding would result in cash flows to be insufficient to fund the Company’s obligations and
continue to raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2017 do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of assets, or
the amounts and classification of liabilities, or any adjustments that may result from uncertainty related to the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

USE OF ESTIMATES—The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company’s estimates, which are
subject to varying degrees of judgment, include the allowances for doubtful accounts, chargebacks and allowances, valuation
of inventories, useful lives associated with long-lived assets, valuation of derivative liabilities, determination of fair values of
certain financial instruments for which there is no active market, accrued purchase commitments, and the valuation and
assumptions underlying stock-based compensation. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates compared to
historical experience and trends, which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities.
In addition, the Company regularly engages the assistance of valuation specialists in concluding on fair value measurements in
connection with stock-based compensation and the valuation of derivative liabilities.

CONCENTRATIONS—At each reporting period, the Company reevaluates each customer’s ability to satisfy credit
obligations and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the evaluations. Two customers comprised
approximately 22% of the Company’s net
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revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017. Four customers comprised approximately 61% of the Company’s accounts
receivable, net, balance as of December 31, 2017. Sales to international customers represented 10% of the Company’s net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2017.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, one supplier represented approximately 17% of the Company’s aggregate purchases.

All of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in the United States of America.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. The majority of payments due from
financial institutions for the settlement of credit card and debit card transactions are processed within two business days and
are therefore classified as cash and cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at
times, may exceed the amounts insured by US government agencies. The Company has not experienced any losses on its
deposits of cash during the year ended December 31, 2017.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS, CHARGEBACKS, AND ALLOWANCES—The Company maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments.
The Company determines the adequacy of this allowance by regularly reviewing the composition of its aged accounts
receivable and evaluating individual customer receivables, considering the customer’s financial condition, the customer’s
credit history, current economic conditions, and other known factors. Additionally, the Company records allowances for
estimated returns and chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, and promotional
allowances. Chargebacks and allowances in excess of individual customer accounts receivable balances are classified as
accrued customer credits in accounts payable.

OTHER RECEIVABLES—Other receivables include short-term receivables from third parties for the sale of assets held for
sale and from co-manufacturers for the sale of raw materials on-hand. Neither of these activities are considered to be in the
normal course of the Company’s business; therefore, no revenue was recognized for these transactions during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

INVENTORY—Inventory consists of raw materials, work-in-progress, and finished products and is valued at the lower of cost
(moving average) or net realizable value. Raw materials include the cost of raw materials and freight. Externally manufactured
finished products include the cost of the product, including related tolling, and freight. Internally manufactured finished
products are equal to the cost of raw materials plus direct labor salaries and related employee benefits and taxes, allocation of
indirect labor salaries and related employee benefits and taxes, rent, insurance, depreciation on production equipment, repairs,
maintenance, and supplies. The Company provides for estimated losses from obsolete or slow-moving inventories and writes
down the cost of inventory at the time such determinations are made to its estimated net realizable value. Reserves are
estimated based upon inventory on hand, historical sales activity, disposition strategies, and the expected net realizable value.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS—Prepaid expenses and other current assets include the
prepayment of various operating expenses, such as rent, insurance, and property taxes, which are expensed when the operating
cost is realized. Additionally,
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prepaid expenses include deposits for inventory purchases for raw materials, which totaled $1,546 as of December 31,
2017.    

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—Property and equipment, including certain equipment under capital lease agreements, are
valued at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the assets’ estimated useful life
or lease term. When property and equipment are retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related
accumulated depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. When property and equipment have been identified to be sold, but
have not yet been sold, the property and equipment are classified as held for sale, and recorded at their respective expected fair
values less costs to sell, based on anticipated transaction amounts. We have ceased depreciating assets held for sale. If the
expected fair values are less than the respective carrying values, an impairment charge is recorded in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policies for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Production machinery and equipment    3 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements    Shorter of the life of lease or useful life
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment    3 - 10 years

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that increase the value or productive capacity of
assets are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies above.

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—Software consists of costs incurred for the development and implementation of internal-use
software. Costs incurred related to software design and application development are capitalized and amortized over an
estimated useful life of two to three years. Costs incurred related to ongoing maintenance, training, and post-implementation
activities are expensed as incurred (see Note 6).

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS—The Company assesses the carrying value of its long-lived assets, consisting
primarily of property and equipment and internal-use software, when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances
may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset, a significant change in the extent or manner in
which an asset is used, a significant change in legal factors or in the business climate, a significant deterioration in the amount
of revenue or cash flows expected to be generated from a group of assets, a current expectation that, more likely than not a
long-lived asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated useful life, or any
other significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of assets may not be
recoverable. The Company performs impairment testing at the asset group level that represents the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable and the expected undiscounted
future cash flows attributable to the asset group are less than the carrying amount of the asset group, an impairment loss equal
to the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value is recorded.
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LEASES—The Company recognizes rent expense related to its noncancelable operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the original contractual term, including the date of physical possession and any renewal periods if the probability of renewal is
reasonably assured, as determined by management. Rent expense includes free rent, rent escalations, concessions, and tenant
allowances. The difference between the cumulative expense recognized and the payments made is recognized as deferred rent
and is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2017. Allowances
received from landlords for leasehold improvements are also recorded as deferred rent, and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the lease term as an offset to rent expense.

CAPITAL LEASES—Leases are classified as capital leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee (see Note 10). All other leases are classified as operating leases (see Note 13). Assets
acquired and held under capital leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding current and long-term liabilities are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as accrued
expenses and obligations under capital leases, net of current portion, respectively. Interest costs, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to interest expense over the term
of the relevant lease.

UNEARNED REVENUE—Unearned revenue relates to deposits received primarily from international customers for sales
orders that have not been shipped as of the balance sheet date. These amounts are recognized as revenue when the related
sales orders are shipped.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS—Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses the following hierarchy in measuring the fair value of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, focusing on the most observable inputs when available:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets and liabilities,
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of
the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement of the
assets or liabilities. Inputs reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and
the risk inherent in the inputs to the model.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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FAIR VALUE METHODS—The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. The carrying amount of the term loan (see Note 8) and line of credit approximates fair value as the
contractual interest rates are based on variable market rates, which are comparable to rates of returns for instruments of similar
credit risk. The fair value of the subordinated notes (see Note 8) from related parties is not readily determinable by virtue of
the nature of the related parties’ relationship with the Company. The fair values of the derivative (see Note 13) and stock-
based compensation (see Note 12) are determined at the end of each reporting period based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy. The Company has accounted for the obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability (see Note
9) measured at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet (mandatorily redeemable preferred units). There were
no transfers between any of the levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Certain assets, including long-lived assets and internal-use software, are also subject to measurement at fair value on a non-
recurring basis if they are deemed to be impaired as a result of an impairment review.

REVENUE RECOGNITION—Based on an existing arrangement, the Company recognizes revenue at the time merchandise
is delivered to its customers, or when merchandise is shipped based on the terms of the arrangement with customers; the prices
are fixed and determinable; payments are reasonably assured; and no further performance obligation exists. Shipping and
handling charges billed to customers are included in net sales, with the related costs included in cost of products sold. Taxes
collected from customers are accounted for on a net basis and are excluded from revenue.

The Company records reductions to revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for estimated returns
and allowances, including chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, promotional
allowances and rebate programs. The Company estimates returns and allowances based on the Company’s history of returns
and allowances. Estimated returns and allowances and ultimate losses may vary from actual results.

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD—Cost of products sold includes costs for inventory and related valuation adjustments,
production and warehouse-related labor and overhead, production-related rent, depreciation and amortization, supplies, repairs
and maintenance, inventory reserves, inventory disposals, and freight. Freight costs from vendors to production facilities and
warehouses are capitalized within inventory and included in cost of products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES—Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of sales
activities related to the Company’s various distribution channels, including agency commissions, expenses related to the
Company’s branding initiatives, media, trade shows, video production, print publications and targeted online advertising
through sponsored search, display advertising, email marketing campaigns, and other promotional initiatives. Selling and
marketing expenses also consist of payroll and related benefit costs. The Company expenses marketing costs as incurred.
Media production costs are expensed the first time the advertisement is aired. Advertising costs included within selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations amounted to $10,158 during
the year ended December 31, 2017.
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The Company charges research and development costs as an expense when incurred. Such costs amounted to $5,067 for the
year ended December 31, 2017, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses relate primarily to payroll and related benefit costs and stock-based
compensation expense for general and administrative personnel, including research and development, accounting and finance,
operations, human resources and customer service, as well as professional and consulting fees and other general overhead and
facility costs, including insurance, utilities, rent and information technology expenses.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION—The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense based on the grant‐date
fair value of units over the applicable service period. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure
the fair value, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions. Stock-based compensation expense for employee
awards which vest based upon continued employment are recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period,
which is generally the vesting period, and is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

Stock-based compensation expense for nonemployee awards is based on the then-current fair values of the units at each
financial reporting date, based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Compensation recorded during each period is
adjusted in subsequent periods for changes in the units’ fair value until the units are settled. Such compensation adjustments
for changes in fair value are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations.

Key input assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the units include the
Company’s estimated equity value, the expected unit’s vesting term, the expected volatility over the expected unit’s vesting
term, and the risk‐free interest rate over the unit’s vesting term. The Company has determined the fair values of its equity,
based in part on the work of third-party valuation specialists, through the use of a discounted cash flow model. The expected
term is determined using the contractual life of the unit and the vesting period. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yields
in effect at the time of grant of U.S. Treasury securities with maturities similar to the expected term of the units. Estimates of
fair value are not intended to predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by persons who receive equity
awards. The Company accounts for forfeitures when they occur.

The determination of stock-based compensation is inherently uncertain and subjective and involves the application of
valuation models and assumptions requiring the use of judgment. If the Company had made different assumptions, its stock-
based compensation expense and its net loss could have been significantly different.

INCOME TAXES—As discussed above in Note 1, Voyage Holdings, LLC was formed as a holding company for the
membership interests of Quest Nutrition, LLC. Voyage Holdings, LLC is organized as limited liability company, and
therefore, is not subject to federal taxes as the profits and losses are passed directly to its members. The Company is, however,
a taxable entity under certain state jurisdictions, which are not material to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
The Company files a federal income tax return and income tax returns
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in certain state jurisdictions as required. The Company’s income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities
for the periods 2015 through 2017 for federal, state, and local jurisdictions. Quest’s income tax returns are subject to
examination by taxing authorities for the periods 2013 through 2017 for federal, state, and local jurisdictions.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general and administrative expenses. There were no uncertain tax benefits recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. No material increase in uncertain tax benefits is expected to occur within the next twelve months.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS—In March 2019, December 2018, July 2018 and February 2016, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2019-01, No. 2018-20,
ASU No. 2018-11, ASU No. 2018-10 and ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), respectively, which requires lessees to
recognize on the balance sheet assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent with
current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee
primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires
only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on
the balance sheet. This new guidance will take effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. As originally
written, this guidance shall be applied at the beginning of the earliest period presented using the modified retrospective
approach, which includes a number of practical expedients that an entity may elect to apply. Early application of this guidance
is permitted. In July 2018, the FASB made targeted improvements to the standard, including providing an additional and
optional transition method. Under this method, an entity initially applies the standard at the adoption date, including the
election of certain transition reliefs, and recognizes a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
in the period of adoption. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles–Goodwill and Other–Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-
40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract, to help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement (hosting
arrangement) by providing guidance for determining when the arrangement includes a software license. This guidance is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and the interim periods there within. Early
application of this guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework–Changes
to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application of this
guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
disclosures.
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In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services
from nonemployees. The amendments specify that Topic 718 applies to all share-based payment transactions in which a
grantor acquires goods or services to be used or consumed in a grantor’s own operations by issuing share-based payment
awards. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 and the interim periods there within.
Early application of this guidance is permitted but no earlier than an entity’s adoption of Topic 606. The Company does not
currently issue share-based payment awards for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees, but the Company will
evaluate the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures in the future if such transactions occur.

In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), Leases (Topic 840), and Leases (Topic 842): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to the Staff
Announcement at the July 20, 2017 EITF Meeting and Rescission of Prior SEC Staff Announcements and Observer
Comments. The SEC Observer said that the SEC staff would not object if entities that are considered public business entities
only because their financial statements are required to be included in another entity’s SEC filing use the effective dates for
private companies when they adopt Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Customers with Contracts
and ASC 842, Leases. This would include entities whose financial statements are included in another entity’s SEC filing
because they are significant acquirees under Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X. The effective date for these entities is the same as
the effective date and transition requirements for the amendments for ASU No. 2014-09 (discussed below) and ASU No.
2016-02 (discussed above).

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification
Accounting, clarifying when a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as a
modification. This guidance requires modification accounting if the fair value, vesting condition or the classification of the
award is not the same immediately before and after a change to the terms and conditions of the award. This guidance is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early application of this guidance is permitted. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.

In December 2016, May 2016, April 2016, March 2016, August 2015 and May 2014, the FASB issued ASUs No. 2016-20,
No. 2016-12, No. 2016-10, No. 2016-08, No. 2015-14 and No. 2014-09, Revenue from Customers with Contracts (Topic 606),
respectively, to amend the accounting guidance for revenue recognition. This guidance requires revenue recognition to depict
the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance sets forth a new revenue recognition model that requires
identifying the contract, identifying the performance obligations, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to performance obligations, and recognizing the revenue upon satisfaction of performance obligations. The amendments
in the ASU can be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or on a modified retrospective basis
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at the date of the initial application along with additional
disclosures. These new standards are effective for annual reporting periods
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beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim reporting periods withing annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
The Company plans to adopt this ASU on January 1, 2019, on an annual basis, using the modified retrospective method, and
does not expect a material impact to the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-19, Technical Corrections and Improvements, which cover a variety of Topics
in the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”). The amendments in this guidance represent changes to clarify, correct
errors, or make minor improvements to the ASC. The amendments make the ASC easier to understand and easier to apply by
eliminating inconsistencies and providing clarifications. Most of the amendments in this guidance were effective immediately;
others were adopted by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017, and it did not have a material impact on the
Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments, to provide guidance for areas where there is diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts
and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017 and the interim periods there within. Early application of this guidance is permitted. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU added a new impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss
(CECL) model) that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes an
allowance for its estimate of expected credit losses and applies to most debt instruments, trade receivables, lease receivables,
financial guarantee contracts, and other loan commitments. The CECL model does not have a minimum threshold for
recognition of impairment losses and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on assets that have a low risk of loss.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, including the interim periods there within. The
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of these changes on the consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, to amend the accounting guidance for share-based payment accounting. The
areas for simplification in this new guidance involve several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, the accounting for forfeitures, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities,
and classification on the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted the guidance for the year ended December 31, 2017,
and applied the guidance to the Company’s stock-based compensation granted during the year ended December 31, 2017 (see
Note 12).

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
requires all inventory, other than inventory measured at last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) or the retail inventory method, to be
measured at the lower of cost and
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net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less
reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. The Company adopted the guidance for the year
ended December 31, 2017, and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following at December 31, 2017:

Accounts receivable $ 34,303
Estimated chargebacks and allowances (9,871)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (969)
  

Accounts Receivable, Net $ 23,463

Bad debt expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 amounted to $443, and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 4 – INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following at December 31, 2017:

Raw materials and packaging materials $ 35,166
Work in progress 49
Finished goods 28,724
  

Inventory $ 63,939

NOTE 5 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2017:

Production machinery and equipment $ 46
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,043
 1,089
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (656)
  

Property and Equipment, Net $ 433

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company abandoned certain production machinery and equipment, furniture,
fixtures and equipment, and leasehold improvement as part of transition of the production process to co-manufacturers. The
Company has recorded related gains and losses on assets disposed of prior to December 31, 2017, in net loss on disposition of
property and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. For the remaining property and equipment
that are not being used, the Company has committed to a plan to sell and are actively marketing the assets and identifying
buyers. Assets that have been disposed of subsequent to December 31, 2017 or will be disposed of during 2018 totaled
$4,054, and are included in assets held for sale in the accompanying
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consolidated balance sheet. These assets included in assets held for sale have been written down by the excess of the
estimated carrying value over the estimated fair value less costs to sell. As of December 31, 2017, the Company recorded an
impairment charge of $23,373, which is included in impairment loss in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations.

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $6,095 for the year ended December 31, 2017, with $4,828 included in
cost of products sold and $1,267 included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations.

NOTE 6 – INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE - NET

Internal-use software, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2017:

Internal-use software costs $ 523
Less: accumulated amortization (259)
  

Internal-Use Software, Net $ 264

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company abandoned certain internal-use software that were determined to be
unusable, and recorded a related impairment charge of $3,643, which is included in impairment loss in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

The total amortization expense for capitalized internal-use software costs for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $28, and
is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
Included in the internal-use software are $258 of costs related to internal-use software that is not yet placed in service.

NOTE 7 – ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2017:

Accrued loss on purchase commitments $ 2,338
Accrued payroll and payroll-related costs 4,779
Accrued inventory purchases 4,411
Accrued leasing commitments 2,346
Accrued other 3,389
  

Accrued Expenses $ 17,263

NOTE 8 – INDEBTEDNESS

As part of the transaction described in Note 1, on March 25, 2015, the Company recapitalized the business through the
issuance of a senior secured credit facility and extinguished existing indebtedness on the former revolving line of credit and
former notes payable with a former lender.
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On March 25, 2015, the Company entered into a credit agreement in the total amount of $120,000 with a syndicate of lenders
(the “Lenders”). A term loan for $95,000 and a revolving line of credit for $25,000 were issued (the “Credit Agreement”). The
Credit Agreement was amended on October 22, 2015, increasing the revolving line of credit to $35,000 and increasing the
aggregate credit facility under the Credit Agreement to $130,000. The Credit Agreement allows the Company to borrow
additional amounts from the Lenders through standby letters of credit and swing line loans, but the standby letters of credit
borrowed reduce the availability of the revolving line of credit. The Credit Agreement has quarterly contractual maturities
through March 2020.

On April 29, 2016, the Credit Agreement was further amended to authorize the Company to enter into a note purchase
agreement with the Founding Members, whereby the Founding Members agreed to purchase from the Company unsecured
subordinated promissory notes (the “Notes”) due in 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of up to $20,000. The Company
issued unsecured subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016,
maturing on September 25, 2020. The Notes bore interest at a rate of 10% per annum during the year ended December 31,
2016. This rate decreased to 5% per annum beginning on January 1, 2017. Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly beginning
June 30, 2016, and principal payments or prepayments before the maturity date are subject to certain restrictions. For the year
ended December 31, 2017, interest expense related to the Notes was $484 and is included in interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Company is required to meet certain financial and non-financial covenants in accordance with the terms of the amended
Credit Agreement. In addition, the Lenders have been granted a security interest in all assets of the Company. As of December
31, 2017, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants under the amended Credit Agreement.

LINE OF CREDIT—The line of credit bears a variable rate of interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
monthly floating rate plus 3% (4.35% per annum as of December 31, 2017). The Company is also subject to an unused
commitment fee equal to 0.5% based on the aggregate amount of available revolving loan commitments. The outstanding
standby letters of credit balance as of December 31, 2017 amounted to $2,352 reducing the available revolving line of credit
to $32,648 before outstanding draws. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had an outstanding balance of $30,900 on the
revolving line of credit, and the remaining availability is $1,748. For the year ended December 31, 2017, interest expense
related to the revolving line of credit was $734, and the unused commitment fee expense related to the revolving line of credit
was $93, both of which are recorded in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

TERM LOAN—The term loan of $95,000 bears a variable rate of interest at the LIBOR monthly floating rate plus 3.5%
(4.85% per annum at December 31, 2017). The term loan is payable in equal quarterly installments of principal of $2,112 plus
interest, with the remaining balance due on March 25, 2020. The term loan is included in long-term debt in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and is net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $1,260 as of December 31, 2017. Current portion
of unamortized debt issuance costs of $561 is included in current portion of long-term debt and noncurrent portion of
unamortized debt issuance cost of $699 is included in long-term debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Interest
expense related to the term loan amounted to $3,437 and expenses for the
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amortization of deferred financing fees related to the issuance of the credit facility totaled $463 in the year ended December
31, 2017.

Scheduled maturities of the term loan for each of the years succeeding December 31, 2017, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2018 $ 8,448
2019 8,448
2020 51,985

  

Total Term Loan $ 68,881

NOTE 9 – MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS

In regard to the 133,333 Class A Preferred Units that were sold to VMG on March 25, 2015, the Company is obligated to
make a payment on the date that is 30 days following the 5th anniversary of the sale (the “VMG Exit Payment”). Under
certain conditions, the Company may defer a portion of the VMG Exit Payment. The Company does not expect to meet those
conditions; therefore, the payment is due in April 2020. If the Company defaults on the VMG Exit Payment, Class C
Common Unit members receive certain additional Class C Common Units and interest accrues thereon.

The Company has accounted for this obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability measured at fair
value at inception in 2015 and each period thereafter through the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with accounting guidance for distinguishing liabilities from equity. This liability will be accreted to the redemption amount,
with any accretion amounts being charged to interest expense within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
The Company has not separately bifurcated or accounted for the deferral or default features related to the VMG Exit Payment
within the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

This payment is equal to three times (3.0x) the aggregate amount of capital contributions made with respect to the Class A
Preferred Units, minus the sum of all prior distributions made with respect to the Class A Preferred Units (other than tax
distributions), plus any tax distributions that the holder of the Class A Preferred Units is owed with respect to net taxable
income allocated to the Class A Preferred Units for any period prior to the date that the VMG Exit Payment is actually paid.
Upon full payment of the VMG Exit Payment, the Class A Preferred Units and Class C Common Units purchased by VMG
from the Founding Members pursuant to the sale shall be cancelled, and the holders shall have no further rights to
distributions and shall no longer be members of the Company.

The mandatorily redeemable financial instrument was initially recorded on March 31, 2015, as a liability, for $150,000. As of
December 31, 2017, the liability associated with the Class A Preferred Units increased to $271,772. For the year ended
December 31, 2017, interest expense related to mandatorily redeemable preferred units was $52,822. If the Company were to
settle the liability as of December 31, 2017, the Company will have to pay VMG the full
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(3.0x) payment of $449,999. A change in the fair value of the Class A Preferred Units has no impact on the settlement price
of this instrument.

NOTE 10 – OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE

The Company leases certain equipment under capital lease obligations. The capital lease obligations have been recorded at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments. At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation of the leased production machinery and equipment were $242 and $61, respectively. Depreciation expense on
assets recorded under capital lease was $337 for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Annual future minimum obligations under the capital leases as of December 31, 2017, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2018 $ 107
2019 89
2020 22

Total minimum lease payments 218
Less: amount representing interest (13)
Present value of obligations under capital lease 205
Less: current portion (98)
  

Long-Term Obligations Under Capital Lease $ 107

Interest expense on capital lease obligations amounted to $32 for the year ended December 31, 2017, and is included in
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 11 – LESSOR ARRANGEMENTS

The Company sub-leases certain leased real estate to a third party under a non-cancelable operating lease. The Company
recorded rental income of $1,293 and rental expense of $1,074 for the year ended December 31, 2017, both of which are
included in other income, net, in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The Company has future minimum
lease receivables from the lessee of $526 through May 31, 2018. Future minimum lease receivables include executory costs,
such as insurance maintenance or taxes. The Company has not deducted operating lease commitments related to this same
sub-leased property of $519 from its total commitments listed in Note 13.

NOTE 12 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 30, 2017, the Company’s limited liability company agreement was amended to authorize the grant of 16,600,000
Class M Common Units of the limited liability company. Certain Quest Employees, as defined in the agreement are eligible to
be granted units, which are intended to qualify and shall be treated as profit interests. Thus, no capital contributions are
necessary. The Company believes that such unit grants align the interest of its employees with those of its shareholders.
Generally, the granted units vest in equal installments on each of the five-year anniversaries following either the date of hire,
the date of grant or another
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specified date, which is identified in each grant agreement. The granted units provide for accelerated vesting if there is a Sale
Transaction as defined in the agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to units granted
in the amount of $1,453, of which $904 relates to current employees and $549 relates to non-employees. Stock-based
compensation expense is recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations.

The following table summarizes the granted unit activity for the year ended December 31, 2017:

 
Class M

Common Units
  

Granted 10,580,000
Vested (466,000)
Forfeited (310,000)
       
Non-vested—December 31, 2017 9,804,000

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the weighted average grant-date fair value of each granted, vested and forfeited unit
was $1.18.

As of December 31, 2017, total unrecognized stock‐based compensation cost related to unvested units granted was
approximately $10,642, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 4.3 years.

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES—The Company has operating leases for its warehouses, corporate office spaces, and certain equipment, some of
which contain free rent periods and escalation clauses. Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term
with the difference between the rent paid and the straight-line rent expense recorded as a deferred rent liability.

During November 2017, the Company entered into a new office facility lease for its headquarters. The lease term is 131
months, which will commence on June 1, 2018, and contains free rent periods, escalation clauses and tenant improvement
allowances.
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As of December 31, 2017, the future minimum rental payments under noncancelable leases are as follows, including the new
office facility:

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

2018 $ 3,058
2019 1,168
2020 1,998
2021 2,042
2022 2,099

Thereafter 14,842
  

Total $ 25,207

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2017, amounted to $5,162, of which $3,117 is included in cost of products sold
and $2,045 is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations, respectively.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS—As of December 31, 2016, the Company had a contractual commitment of $40,473 for a
raw material used in the production of protein bars that required minimum purchases through February 2018. The Company
performed an analysis of the contract identifying that the minimum purchase requirements under the terms of the agreement
were in excess of the expected use of this ingredient in production. This analysis considered a variety of factors including
expected sales volumes, expected use of the ingredient within production, the underlying useful life of the ingredient as well
as the anticipated cannibalization from the Company's other new products on the expected sales of the products that use this
ingredient. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has no alternative use for the excess raw material and therefore had
recorded a contractual loss liability for $18,301.

During December 2017, the Company renegotiated and amended the agreement to change the delivery dates of raw materials
to align with the Company’s production schedule. As of December 31, 2017, the required minimum purchases amounted to
$14,237 through April 2019. The Company performed a similar analysis as compared to the analysis in 2016, and based on
the amendment determined that the contractual loss liability for future raw material deliveries was no longer necessary.
Therefore, the Company reversed the contractual loss liability of $18,301, and the resulting gain is included in cost of
products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has estimated and recorded additional purchase commitments related to the purchase
of inventory and packaging that are considered nonrecoverable. The total amount is $2,338, and is included in accrued
expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet (see Note 7).

DERIVATIVE—Quest entered into a loan agreement dated June 6, 2012 by and between the Company and Montage Capital
II L.P. (“Montage”), as amended on August 11, 2014, March 24, 2015, and September 25, 2017 (as amended, the “Montage
Credit Agreement”). Under the Montage Credit Agreement, the Company is obligated to pay Montage a cash fee (“Success
Fee”) equal to a defined percentage (“Success Percentage”) of the proceeds received by the
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members of the Company raised in connection with a Liquidity Event (as defined in the Montage Credit Agreement).

During 2015, the Company executed a partial Liquidity Event upon sale of minority interest of units in the Company, which
resulted in the cash payment of $2,775 to Montage. This cash payment represented a partial Liquidity Event and reduced the
Success Percentage.

The settlement of the Success Fee meets the definition of a derivative recognized at fair value and was remeasured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value. The fair value of the derivative value was determined based on the Success Percentage of
the equity value of the Company. The equity value of the Company was determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.
Significant assumptions made in the analysis included estimates of revenue growth, operating margin, and the selected
discount rate. Based on these assumptions, the fair value of the derivative was $7,200 as of December 31, 2017, and is
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The change in fair value resulted in a gain of $4,023 for the year
ended December 31, 2017, which is included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations, and is classified as a
non-cash change in derivative value under operating activities in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows.

There are no other loans, obligations or commitments outstanding related to the Montage Credit Agreement as of December
31, 2017.

LITIGATION—From time to time the Company is involved in legal actions arising from its normal operations and is
presented with claims for damages arising out of its actions. Except for the matter described below, the Company cannot
predict the ultimate outcome, or reasonably estimate the probability or the range of loss, if any. If legal actions are not
resolved in the Company’s favor, losses arising from the results of litigation or settlements, as well as ongoing defense costs,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

On or around June 16, 2015, a putative class action case was filed in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles
alleging wage and hour violations, including, but not limited to, claims related to meal and rest period violations. The
Company settled the putative class action case and is awaiting court approval on a preliminary settlement amount of $1,200.
The preliminary settlement amount is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2017.

NOTE 14 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee benefit plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”),
whereby participants may contribute a percentage of their compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed under the
Code (the “Plan”). Subsequent to December 31, 2017, the Plan was amended to allow for employer matching contributions.
There were no employer matching contributions during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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NOTE 15 – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The minority interest holder in the Company charges the Company an annual management fee of $250, which is included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Certain members of management serve as directors of a foundation, a Delaware non-stock corporation and Internal Revenue
Code section 501(c)(3) tax-exempt non-profit organization, which was formed in December 2015, whose principal activity is
metabolic studies. The Company expensed $1,333 that was paid to the foundation during the year ended December 31, 2017,
related to research and development expenses, and such amounts are included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Company issued unsecured subordinated notes in the amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016 (see
Note 8).

NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements
were available to be issued.

During 2018, the Company made a voluntary change to its accounting policy for inventory cost basis, effective January 1,
2018. Under the previous accounting policy, inventory items were recorded on a moving-average cost basis. Historically, the
Company was a manufacturer of its finished products. At the end of 2017, the Company stopped manufacturing, and moved to
utilizing outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its finished products. These co-manufacturers became fully turnkey
in early 2018. Based on these manufacturing changes, the Company determined that a change from a moving-average cost
basis to a standard cost basis for recording inventory items is preferable because it provides more current information to the
users of the consolidated financial statements. The effect of this change in accounting policy amounted to $2,858. In
accordance with applicable accounting guidance, a change in accounting cost basis is treated as a change in accounting
principle and requires retrospective application. The Company determined that it is impracticable to apply the effects of the
change in accounting cost basis to periods prior to January 1, 2018; therefore, the effect of this change in accounting policy
has been included in cost of products sold in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2018.

During 2018, the Company settled the putative class action case, referenced above in Note 13, and made a settlement payment
in the amount of $1,238.

During March 2018, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Quest Nutrition Limited, in London, England.

During May 2018, the Company entered into a new warehouse facility lease for a distribution center. The lease commenced on
September 6, 2018; the lease term is 79 months; and contains free rent periods and escalation clauses. Future total minimum
rental payments related to the new warehouse facility amount to $5,349.
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On August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement with the Company along
with VMG Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation and related party of the Company. Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. is a wholly
owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods Company. Pursuant to the Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement, The Simply
Good Foods Company will acquire Quest Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby via Atkins
Nutritionals, Inc.’s acquisition of 100% of the equity interests of each of Voyage Holdings, LLC and VMG Quest Blocker, Inc.
for a cash purchase price of $1,000,000, which is expected to close before the end of fiscal 2019. The proceeds of which will
be used, in part, to fund the VMG Exit Payment and the outstanding debt.

******
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016  
(In thousands)  
  

ASSETS  

CURRENT ASSETS:  
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,064
  Accounts receivable, net 16,894
  Inventory 52,037
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,614

      Total current assets 80,609

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—NET 44,473

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—NET 3,217

OTHER ASSETS 756

TOTAL ASSETS $ 129,055

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:  
  Accounts payable $ 19,969
  Accrued expenses 7,189
  Line of credit 9,000
  Current portion of long-term debt 8,091
  Other current liabilities 1,360

      Total current liabilities 45,609

LONG-TERM DEBT—Net of current portion 68,060
PURCHASE COMMITMENTS 18,301
DERIVATIVE 11,223
SUBORDINATED DEBT 9,686
MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS 218,950
DEFERRED RENT AND TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE—Net of
current portion 1,184
OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES—Net of current portion 308

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 12)  

MEMBERS' DEFICIT (244,266)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT $ 129,055

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  
(In thousands)  

REVENUE—NET $ 350,795

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD
(includes insurance claim recovery of $4,810 – see Note 2) 276,979

GROSS MARGIN 73,816

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 62,465

OPERATING INCOME 11,351

OTHER EXPENSE 14

DERIVATIVE VALUATION LOSS 11,223

INTEREST EXPENSE 5,389

INTEREST EXPENSE RELATED TO MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE
PREFERRED UNITS 42,555

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (47,830)

TAX EXPENSE 127

NET LOSS $ (47,957)
  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MEMBERS' DEFICIT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  
(In thousands)  

BALANCE—January 1, 2016 $ (186,584)
  

  

Distributions (9,725)
  

Net loss (47,957)
  

BALANCE—December 31, 2016 $ (244,266)
  

  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  
(In thousands)  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
Net loss $ (47,957)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:  

Depreciation and amortization 7,091
Loss on disposition on property and equipment 299
Derivative valuation loss 11,223
Purchase commitment loss 18,301
Accretion of mandatorily reedemable preferred units 42,555

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  
Accounts receivable (2,394)
Inventory 14,521
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets 3,412
Accounts payable (2,582)
Accrued expenses 499
Deferred rent (283)
Other current liabilities (3,188)

         Net cash provided by operating activities 41,497

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
Payments for the acquisition of property and equipment (5,697)
Payments for the acquisition of internal-use software (2,121)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 440

         Net cash used in investing activities (7,378)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
Proceeds from subordinate debt 9,686
Payments on term loan (8,447)
Borrowings under line of credit 11,000
Payments under line of credit (26,000)
Change in book overdraft (2,288)
Payments of capital lease obligations (350)
Distributions paid (9,725)

         Net cash used in financing activities (26,124)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7,995

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF YEAR 69

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF YEAR $ 8,064

 (Continued)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY  
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016  
(In thousands)  
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:  
  

     Cash paid during the year for interest $ 4,993
  

     Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 127
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:  
  

    Acquisition of equipment under capital lease obligations $ 183
  

   Application of deposits on property and equipment upon acquisition of property
and equipment $ 2,760
  

    Acquisition of software through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 231
  

  

See notes to consolidated financial statements.  (Concluded)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

FORMATION OF BUSINESS—Voyage Holdings, LLC (the “Company”) was organized and established as a limited liability
company on March 19, 2015, in the state of Delaware to effectuate a minority interest sale (“Transaction”) in Voyage Holdings, LLC
to a private equity firm on March 24, 2015. Voyage Holdings, LLC has five ownership groups: one member (288,889 units, or
33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units), another member (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units and 288,889 units,
or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units), various trusts (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units and 288,889 units, or
40.6%, of Class C Common Units) (collectively, the “Founding Members”) and VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC (“VMG”)
(133,333 units, or 100%, of Class A Preferred Units and 133,333 units, or 18.8%, of Class C Common Units, and Voyage
Employee Holdings, LLC (111,111 units, or 100% of Class M Common units). Aside from the Class M Common Units, which
are not entitled to vote, the holders of Class A Preferred Units, Class B Preferred Units (except Class B Preferred Units held by
one member) and Class C Common Units shall be entitled to vote together as a single class.

Quest Nutrition, LLC (“Quest”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Voyage Holdings, LLC. Distributions are made from the Company
to its Founding Members, VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC for the payment of income taxes and
other approved distributions, funded from the Company’s wholly owned and consolidated operating company, Quest Nutrition,
LLC.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company refinanced the business through the issuance of a senior secured credit facility (see
Note 8) to pay certain member distributions, extinguish existing indebtedness, and to provide additional operational financing to
support Quest Nutrition, LLC’s working capital needs.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY—The Company manufactures and distributes a variety of protein-based food products in the United States
and worldwide. Sales to international customers represented 10% of the Company’s net sales for the year ended December 31, 2016.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION—The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include the
consolidated financial position and results of operations of the Company and its wholly owned and controlled subsidiary. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”).

LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN—The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in
the normal course of business. As of the date these financials are issued, the Company has cumulative net losses to date and
significant negative working capital. As fully described below in Note 9, the Company is obligated to pay an exit payment to
VMG of approximately $449,999 in April 2020. Further, as described in Note 8, an additional balloon payment related to the
term loan is due in March 2020. As a result, there is a substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
 
The Company’s plans include using the proceeds, in part, of the sale of its equity to fund the exit payment and term loan. As
described in Note 15, the Company entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement to sell 100% of its equity interest for a
cash purchase price of $1,000,000. Although management believes such plans should provide the Company sufficient
financing to meet its needs, successful completion of such plans is dependent on factors outside of the Company’s control. As
such, management cannot conclude that such plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. As a result, management has concluded that the aforementioned conditions, raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are
issued.
 
Failure to obtain additional funding would result in cash flows to be insufficient to fund the Company’s obligations and
continue to raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2016 do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of assets, or
the amounts and classification of liabilities, or any adjustments that may result from uncertainty related to the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

USE OF ESTIMATES—The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company’s estimates, which are
subject to varying degrees of judgment, include the allowances for doubtful accounts, chargebacks and allowances, valuation
of inventories, useful lives associated with long-lived assets, valuation of derivative liabilities, determination of fair values of
certain financial instruments for which there is no active market and accrued purchase commitments. On an ongoing basis, the
Company evaluates its estimates compared to historical experience and trends, which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities. In addition, the Company regularly engages the assistance of valuation
specialists in concluding on fair value measurements in connection with the valuation of derivative liabilities.

63



CONCENTRATIONS—At each reporting period, the Company reevaluates each customer’s ability to satisfy credit
obligations and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the evaluations. One customer comprised
approximately 12% of the Company’s net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016. This customer represents
approximately 5% of accounts receivable, net, as of December 31, 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, eleven suppliers represented approximately 86% of the Company’s aggregate
purchases, with three suppliers individually representing approximately 24%, 17%, and 10% of aggregate purchases.

All of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in the United States of America.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. The majority of payments due from
financial institutions for the settlement of credit card and debit card transactions are processed within two business days and
are therefore classified as cash and cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at
times, may exceed the amounts insured by US government agencies. The Company has not experienced any losses on its
deposits of cash during the year ended December 31, 2016.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS, CHARGEBACKS, AND ALLOWANCES—The Company maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments.
The Company determines the adequacy of this allowance by regularly reviewing the composition of its aged accounts
receivable and evaluating individual customer receivables, considering the customer’s financial condition, the customer’s
credit history, current economic conditions, and other known factors. Additionally, the Company records allowances for
estimated returns and chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, and promotional
allowances. Chargebacks and allowances in excess of individual customer accounts receivable balances are classified as
accrued customer credits in accounts payable.

INVENTORY—Inventory consists of raw materials, work-in-progress, and finished products and is valued at the lower of cost
(moving average) or market. Raw materials include the cost of raw materials and freight. Finished products are equal to the
cost of raw materials plus direct labor salaries and related employee benefits and taxes, allocation of indirect labor salaries and
related employee benefits and taxes, rent, insurance, depreciation on production equipment, repairs, maintenance, and
supplies. The Company provides for estimated losses from obsolete or slow-moving inventories and writes down the cost of
inventory at the time such determinations are made to its estimated net realizable value. Reserves are estimated based upon
inventory on hand, historical sales activity, disposition strategies, and the expected net realizable value.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS—Prepaid expenses and other current assets include the
prepayment of various operating expenses, such as rent, insurance, and property taxes, which are expensed when the operating
cost is realized. Additionally, prepaid expenses include deposits for inventory purchases for raw materials, which totaled $721
as of December 31, 2016.    
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—Property and equipment, including certain equipment under capital lease agreements, are
valued at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the assets’ estimated useful life
or lease term. When property and equipment are retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related
accumulated depreciation account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in selling, general, and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. When property and equipment have been identified to be
sold, but have not yet been sold, the property and equipment are classified as held for sale, and recorded at their respective
expected fair values less costs to sell, based on anticipated transaction amounts. If the expected fair values are less than the
respective carrying values, an impairment charge is recorded in accordance with in the Company’s accounting policies for
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Production machinery and equipment    3 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements    Shorter of the life of lease or useful life
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment    3 - 10 years

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Expenditures that increase the value or productive capacity of
assets are capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the policies above.

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—Software consists of costs incurred for the development and implementation of internal-use
software. Costs incurred related to software design and application development are capitalized and amortized over an
estimated useful life of two to three years. Costs incurred related to ongoing maintenance, training, and post-implementation
activities are expensed as incurred (see Note 6).

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS—The Company assesses the carrying value of its long-lived assets, consisting
primarily of property and equipment and internal-use software, when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances
may include a significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset, a significant change in the extent or manner in
which an asset is used, a significant change in legal factors or in the business climate, a significant deterioration in the amount
of revenue or cash flows expected to be generated from a group of assets, a current expectation that, more likely than not a
long-lived asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated useful life, or any
other significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying value of an asset or group of assets may not be
recoverable. The Company performs impairment testing at the asset group level that represents the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable and the expected undiscounted
future cash flows attributable to the asset group are less than the carrying amount of the asset group, an impairment loss equal
to the excess
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of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value is recorded. No impairments were identified in the year ended December 31,
2016.

LEASES—The Company recognizes rent expense related to its noncancelable operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the original contractual term, including the date of physical possession and any renewal periods if the probability of renewal is
reasonably assured, as determined by management. Rent expense includes free rent, rent escalations, concessions, and tenant
allowances. The difference between the cumulative expense recognized and the payments made is recognized as deferred rent
and is included in deferred rent and tenant improvement allowance in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2016. Allowances received from landlords for leasehold improvements are also recorded as deferred rent, and
are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term as an offset to rent expense.

CAPITAL LEASES—Leases are classified as capital leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee (see Note 10). All other leases are classified as operating leases (see Note 12). Assets
acquired and held under capital leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding current and long-term liabilities are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as other
current liabilities and obligations under capital leases, respectively. Interest costs, which represent the difference between the
total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to operations over the term of the relevant
lease.

UNEARNED REVENUE—Unearned revenue relates to deposits received primarily from international customers for sales
orders that have not been shipped as of the balance sheet date. These amounts are recognized as revenue when the related
sales orders are shipped. Unearned revenue of $470 is included in other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2016.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS—Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses the following hierarchy in measuring the fair value of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, focusing on the most observable inputs when available:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets and liabilities,
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of
the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement of the
assets or liabilities. Inputs reflect management’s best
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estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs to the model.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

FAIR VALUE METHODS—The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. The carrying amount of the term loan (see Note 8) and line of credit approximates fair value as the
contractual interest rates are based on variable market rates, which are comparable to rates of returns for instruments of similar
credit risk. The fair value of the subordinated notes (see Note 8) from related parties is not readily determinable by virtue of
the nature of the related parties’ relationship with the Company. The fair value of the derivative (see Note 12) is determined at
the end of each reporting period based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy. The Company has accounted for the
obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability (see Note 9) measured at fair value on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet (mandatorily redeemable preferred units). There were no transfers between any of the levels of the fair
value hierarchy.

Certain assets, including long-lived assets and internal-use software, are also subject to measurement at fair value on a non-
recurring basis if they are deemed to be impaired as a result of an impairment review.

REVENUE RECOGNITION—Based on an existing arrangement, the Company recognizes revenue at the time merchandise
is delivered to its customers or when merchandise is shipped based on the terms of the arrangement with customers; the prices
are fixed and determinable; payments are reasonably assured; and no further performance obligation exists. Shipping and
handling charges billed to customers are included in net sales, with the related costs included in cost of products sold. Taxes
collected from customers are accounted for on a net basis and are excluded from revenue.

The Company records reductions to revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for estimated returns
and allowances, including chargebacks by its customers for product recalls, damaged products, markdowns, promotional
allowances and rebate programs. The Company estimates returns and allowances based on the Company’s history of returns
and allowances. Estimated returns and allowances and ultimate losses may vary from actual results.

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD—Cost of products sold includes costs for inventory and related valuation adjustments,
production and warehouse-related labor and overhead, production-related rent, depreciation and amortization, supplies, repairs
and maintenance, inventory reserves, inventory disposals, and freight. Freight costs from vendors to production facilities and
warehouses are capitalized within inventory and included in cost of products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2016, cost of products sold is offset by insurance claim recovery
received totaling $4,810
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related to business interruption and equipment breakdown that occurred during the year ended December 31, 2015. The
Company was made aware of quality concerns resulting in delayed shipments, loss of revenue, and raw and finished product
disposal. The Company filed business interruption claims and recovered net insurance proceeds of $4,810 during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

        
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES—Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of sales
activities related to the Company’s various distribution channels, including agency commissions, expenses related to the
Company’s branding initiatives, media, trade shows, video production, print publications and targeted online advertising
through sponsored search, display advertising, email marketing campaigns, and other promotional initiatives. Selling and
marketing expenses also consist of payroll and related benefit costs. The Company expenses marketing costs as incurred.
Media production costs are expensed the first time the advertisement is aired. Advertising costs included within selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations amounted to $10,741 during
the year ended December 31, 2016.

        
The Company charges research and development costs as an expense when incurred. Such costs amounted to $5,517 for the
year ended December 31, 2016, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses relate primarily to payroll and related benefit costs for general and
administrative personnel, including research and development, accounting and finance, operations, human resources and
customer service, as well as professional and consulting fees and other general overhead and facility costs, including
insurance, utilities, rent and information technology expenses.

INCOME TAXES—As discussed above in Note 1, Voyage Holdings, LLC, was formed as a holding company for the
membership interests of Quest Nutrition, LLC. Voyage Holdings, LLC is organized as limited liability company, and
therefore, is not subject to federal taxes as the profits and losses are passed directly to its members. The Company is, however,
a taxable entity under certain state jurisdictions, which are not material to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
The Company files a federal income tax return and income tax returns in certain state jurisdictions as required. The
Company’s income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities for the periods 2015 through 2016 for federal,
state, and local jurisdictions. Quest’s income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities for the periods 2013
through 2016 for federal, state, and local jurisdictions.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general, and administrative expenses. There were no uncertain tax benefits recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. No material increase in uncertain tax benefits is expected to occur within the next twelve months.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS —In March 2019, December 2018, July 2018 and February 2016, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2019-01, No. 2018-20,
ASU No. 2018-11, ASU
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No. 2018-10 and ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), respectively, which requires lessees to recognize on the balance sheet
assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition,
measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its
classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be
recognized on the balance sheet—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the balance sheet. This
new guidance will take effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. As originally written, this guidance shall be
applied at the beginning of the earliest period presented using the modified retrospective approach, which includes a number
of practical expedients that an entity may elect to apply. Early application of this guidance is permitted. In July 2018, the
FASB made targeted improvements to the standard, including providing an additional and optional transition method. Under
this method, an entity initially applies the standard at the adoption date, including the election of certain transition reliefs, and
recognizes a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption. The Company
is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles–Goodwill and Other–Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-
40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract, to help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement (hosting
arrangement) by providing guidance for determining when the arrangement includes a software license. This guidance is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and the interim periods there within. Early
application of this guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework–Changes
to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application of this
guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
disclosures.

In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), Leases (Topic 840), and Leases (Topic 842): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to the Staff
Announcement at the July 20, 2017 EITF Meeting and Rescission of Prior SEC Staff Announcements and Observer
Comments. The SEC Observer said that the SEC staff would not object if entities that are considered public business entities
only because their financial statements are required to be included in another entity’s SEC filing use the effective dates for
private companies when they adopt Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Customers with Contracts
and ASC 842, Leases. This would include entities whose financial statements are included in another entity’s SEC filing
because they are significant acquirees under Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X. The effective date for these entities is the same as
the effective date and
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transition requirements for the amendments for ASU No. 2014-09 (discussed below) and ASU No. 2016-02 (discussed above).
 

In December 2016, May 2016, April 2016, March 2016, August 2015 and May 2014, the FASB issued ASUs No. 2016-20,
No. 2016-12, No. 2016-10, No. 2016-08, No. 2015-14 and No. 2014-09, Revenue from Customers with Contracts (Topic 606),
respectively, to amend the accounting guidance for revenue recognition. This guidance requires revenue recognition to depict
the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance sets forth a new revenue recognition model that requires
identifying the contract, identifying the performance obligations, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to performance obligations, and recognizing the revenue upon satisfaction of performance obligations. The amendments
in the ASU can be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or on a modified retrospective basis
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at the date of the initial application along with
additional disclosures. These new standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and
interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company plans to adopt
this ASU on January 1, 2019, on an annual basis using the modified retrospective method, and does not expect a material
impact to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-19, Technical Corrections and Improvements, which cover a variety of Topics
in the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”). The amendments in this guidance represent changes to clarify, correct
errors, or make minor improvements to the ASC. The amendments make the ASC easier to understand and easier to apply by
eliminating inconsistencies and providing clarifications. Most of the amendments in this guidance were effective immediately,
and did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements and disclosures. Other
amendments in this guidance are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2017, and the Company
does not expect a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments, to provide guidance for areas where there is diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts
and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017 and the interim periods there within. Early application of this guidance is permitted. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU added a new impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss
(CECL) model) that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes an
allowance for its estimate of expected credit losses and applies to most debt instruments,
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trade receivables, lease receivables, financial guarantee contracts, and other loan commitments. The CECL model does not
have a minimum threshold for recognition of impairment losses and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on
assets that have a low risk of loss. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, including the
interim periods there within. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of these changes on the consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the guidance issued in ASU No. 2015-03, Interest – Imputation of Interest
(Topic 835): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs to simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs. This
standard requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct
deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. As a result of the adoption of this
guidance, debt issuance costs as of December 31, 2016, were included as a direct deduction from the debt in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
will require an entity to measure inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is defined as the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and
transportation. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company does not expect
the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the guidance issued in ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial
Statements – Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going
Concern, which requires an entity’s management to assess, for each annual and interim period, whether there is substantial
doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the financial statement issuance date. The
definition of substantial doubt within the new standard incorporates a likelihood threshold of “probable” similar to the use of
that term under current GAAP for loss contingencies. Certain disclosures will be required if conditions give rise to substantial
doubt. The Company has evaluated the impact of adopting ASU No. 2014-15 on its financial statements and related
disclosures (see Note 2 Liquidity and Going Concern).

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable, net, consists of the following at December 31, 2016:

Accounts receivable $ 20,084
Estimated chargebacks and allowances (2,985)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (205)
  

Accounts Receivable, Net $ 16,894
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NOTE 4 – INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following at December 31, 2016:

Raw materials and packaging materials $ 35,934
Work in progress 2,002
Finished goods 14,101
  

Inventory $ 52,037

NOTE 5 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2016:

Production machinery and equipment $ 44,557
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5,053
Leasehold improvement 7,194
 56,804
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (12,331)
  

Property and Equipment, Net $ 44,473

Depreciation expense amounted to $6,814 for the year ended December 31, 2016, with $5,471 included in cost of products
sold, and $1,343 included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations.

NOTE 6 – INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE - NET

Internal-use software, net, consist of the following at December 31, 2016:

Internal-use software costs $ 3,501
Less: accumulated amortization (284)
  

Internal-Use Software, Net $ 3,217

The total amortization expense for capitalized internal-use software costs for the year ended December 31, 2016, was $95,
and is included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
Included in the internal-use software are $3,173 costs related to internal-use software that is not yet placed in service.
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NOTE 7 – ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31, 2016:

Accrued purchase commitments $ 590
Accrued payroll and vacation 2,390
Accrued insurance 1,886
Accrued commission 998
Accrued other 1,325
  

Accrued Expenses $ 7,189

NOTE 8 – INDEBTEDNESS

As part of the transaction described in Note 1, on March 25, 2015, the Company recapitalized the business through the
issuance of a senior secured credit facility and extinguished existing indebtedness on the former revolving line of credit and
former notes payable with a former lender.

On March 25, 2015, the Company entered into the Credit Agreement in the total amount of $120,000 with a syndicate of
lenders (the “Lenders”). A term loan for $95,000 and a revolving line of credit for $25,000 were issued (the “Credit
Agreement”). The Credit Agreement was amended on October 22, 2015, increasing the revolving line of credit to $35,000 and
increasing the aggregate credit facility under the Credit Agreement to $130,000. The Credit Agreement allows the Company
to borrow additional amounts from the Lenders through standby letters of credit and swing line loans, but the standby letters
of credit borrowed reduce the availability of the revolving line of credit. The Credit Agreement has quarterly contractual
maturities through March 2020.

On April 29, 2016, the Credit Agreement was further amended to authorize the Company to enter into a note purchase
agreement with the Founding Members, whereby the Founding Members agreed to purchase from the Company unsecured
subordinated promissory notes (the “Notes”) due in 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of up to $20,000. The Company
issued unsecured subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016,
maturing on September 25, 2020. The Notes bore interest at a rate of 10% per annum during the year ended December 31,
2016. This rate decreases to 5% per annum beginning on January 1, 2017. Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly beginning
June 30, 2016, and principal payments or prepayments before the maturity date are subject to certain restrictions. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, interest expense related to the Notes was $719 and is included in interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The Company is required to meet certain financial and non-financial covenants in accordance with the terms of the amended
Credit Agreement. In addition, the Lenders have been granted a security interest in all assets of the Company. As of December
31, 2016, the Company was not in compliance with certain financial covenants under the Credit Agreement.
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During May and August of 2017, amendments to the Credit Agreement were executed to modify definitions of certain
financial covenants. These amendments did not change the covenants retrospectively, and thus the violated covenants
remained uncured as of December 31, 2016, however as of the date of issuance of these financial statements the debt is no
longer callable and has been classified as current and long term debt in accordance with the Company’s repayment schedule.

LINE OF CREDIT—The line of credit bears a variable rate of interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
monthly floating rate plus 3% (3.57% per annum as of December 31, 2016). The Company is also subject to an unused
commitment fee equal to 0.5% based on the aggregate amount of available revolving loan commitments. The Company issued
two standby letters of credit in 2016. The outstanding standby letters of credit balance as of December 31, 2016 amounted to
$902 reducing the available revolving line of credit to $34,098 before outstanding draws. As of December 31, 2016, the
Company had an outstanding balance of $9,000 on the revolving line of credit. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
interest expense related to the revolving line of credit was $972, and the unused commitment fee expense related to the
revolving line of credit was $36, both of which are recorded in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement
of operations.

TERM LOAN—The term loan of $95,000 bears a variable rate of interest at the LIBOR monthly floating rate plus 3.5%
(4.11% per annum at December 31, 2016). The term loan is payable in equal quarterly installments of principal of $2,112 plus
interest, with the remaining balance due on March 25, 2020. The term loan is included in long-term debt in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet and is net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $1,178 as of December 31, 2016. Current portion
of unamortized debt issuance costs of $356 is included in current portion of long-term debt and noncurrent portion of
unamortized debt issuance cost of $822 is included in long-term debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Interest
expense related to the term loan amounted to $3,297 and expenses for the amortization of deferred financing fees related to the
issuance of the credit facility totaled $378 in the year ended December 31, 2016.

Scheduled maturities of the term loan for each of the years succeeding December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2017 $ 8,448
2018 8,448
2019 8,448
2020 51,985

  

Total Term Loan $ 77,329
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NOTE 9 – MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS

In regard to the 133,333 Class A Preferred Units that were sold to VMG on March 25, 2015, the Company is obligated to
make a payment on the date that is 30 days following the 5th anniversary of the sale (the “VMG Exit Payment”). Under
certain conditions, the Company may defer a portion of the VMG Exit Payment. The Company does not expect to meet those
conditions; therefore, the payment is due in April 2020. If the Company defaults on the VMG Exit Payment, Class C
Common Unit members receive certain additional Class C Common Units and interest accrues thereon.

The Company has accounted for this obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability measured at fair
value at inception in 2015 and each period thereafter through the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with accounting guidance for distinguishing liabilities from equity. This liability will be accreted to the redemption amount,
with any accretion amounts being charged to interest expense within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
The Company has not separately bifurcated or accounted for the deferral or default features related to the VMG Exit Payment
within the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

This payment is equal to three times (3.0x) the aggregate amount of capital contributions made with respect to the Class A
Preferred Units, minus the sum of all prior distributions made with respect to the Class A Preferred Units (other than tax
distributions), plus any tax distributions that the holder of the Class A Preferred Units is owed with respect to net taxable
income allocated to the Class A Preferred Units for any period prior to the date that the VMG Exit Payment is actually paid.
Upon full payment of the VMG Exit Payment, the Class A Preferred Units and Class C Common Units purchased by VMG
from the Founding Members pursuant to the sale shall be cancelled, and the holders shall have no further rights to
distributions and shall no longer be members of the Company.

The mandatorily redeemable financial instrument was initially recorded on March 25, 2015, as a liability, for $150,000. As of
December 31, 2016, the liability associated with the Class A Preferred Units increased to $218,950. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, interest expense related to mandatorily redeemable preferred units was $42,555. If the Company were to
settle the liability as of December 31, 2016, the Company will have to pay VMG the full (3.0x) payment of $449,999. A
change in the fair value of the Class A Preferred Units has no impact on the settlement price of this instrument.

NOTE 10 – OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE

The Company leases certain equipment under capital lease obligations. The capital lease obligations have been recorded at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments. At December 31, 2016, the carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation of the leased production machinery and equipment were $1,996 and $1,018, respectively. Depreciation expense
on assets recorded under capital lease was $490 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Annual future minimum obligations under the capital leases as of December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Years
Ending December 31, Amount

2017 $ 382
2018 219
2019 57
2020 42

Total minimum lease payments 700
Less: amount representing interest (30)
Present value of obligations under capital lease 670
Less: current portion (362)
  

Long-Term Obligations Under Capital Lease $ 308

Interest expense on capital lease obligations amounted to $23 for the year ended December 31, 2016, and is included in
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 11 – LESSOR ARRANGEMENTS

The Company sub-leases certain leased real estate to a third party under a non-cancelable operating lease. The Company
recorded rental income of $204 and rental expense of $192 for the year ended December 31, 2016, related to certain property
sublease to a third party. The Company has future minimum lease receivables from the lessee of $1,779 through May 31,
2018, including $1,253 and $526 receivable during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively. Future
minimum lease receivables include executory costs, such as insurance maintenance or taxes. The Company has not deducted
operating lease commitments related to this same sub-leased property of $1,694, including $1,193 and $501 owed during the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2018, respectively, from its total commitments listed in Note 12.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES—The Company has operating leases for its warehouse, corporate office spaces, and certain equipment. The leases
expire at various dates through July 2020. Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term with the
difference between the rent paid and the straight-line rent expense recorded as a deferred rent liability.
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As of December 31, 2016, the future minimum rental payments under noncancelable leases are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31, Amount

2017 $ 7,251
2018 4,518
2019 2,473
2020 1,470

  

Total $ 15,712

Warehouse and office spaces and copiers rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2016, amounted to $6,960, of which
$4,019 is included in cost of products sold and $2,941 is included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations, respectively.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS— The Company entered into certain purchase commitments for raw materials. These
commitments are non-cancelable.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company’s firm purchase commitments remaining under these contracts were as follows:

Years Ending
           December 31, Purchase Commitments

2017 $ 43,845
2018 9,501

Total $ 53,346

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had a contractual commitment of $40,473 for a raw material used in the production
of protein bars that required minimum purchases through February 2018. The Company performed an analysis of the contract
identifying that the minimum purchase requirements under the terms of the agreement were in excess of the expected use of
this ingredient in production. This analysis considered a variety of factors including expected sales volumes, expected use of
the ingredient within production, the underlying useful life of the ingredient as well as the anticipated cannibalization from
the Company's other new products on the expected sales of the products that use this ingredient. As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Company has no alternative use for the excess raw material and therefore had recorded a contractual
loss liability for $18,301, which is included in purchase commitments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, and
the related cost is recognized in cost of products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
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DERIVATIVE—Quest entered into a loan agreement dated June 6, 2012 by and between the Company and Montage Capital
II L.P. (“Montage”), as amended on August 11, 2014, March 24, 2015, and September 25, 2017 (as amended, the “Montage
Credit Agreement”). Under the Montage Credit Agreement, the Company is obligated to pay Montage a cash fee (“Success
Fee”) equal to a defined percentage (“Success Percentage”) of the proceeds received by the members of the Company raised
in connection with a Liquidity Event (as defined in the Montage Credit Agreement).

During 2015, the Company executed a partial Liquidity Event upon sale of minority interest of units in the Company, which
resulted in the cash payment of $2,775 to Montage. This cash payment represented a partial Liquidity Event and reduced the
Success Percentage.

The settlement of the Success Fee meets the definition of a derivative recognized at fair value. The fair value of the derivative
value was determined using a Monte Carlo Simulation model. Monte Carlo Simulation, or probability simulation, is a
technique used to understand the impact of risk and uncertainty in forecasting models. The Monte Carlo Simulation utilized an
assumed equity value of the Company, along with an assumed risk-free-rate of 1.93%, equity volatility of 56.0%, and an
expected liquidation of the founding owners’ remaining interests in the Company in five years. The equity value of the
Company was determined using both the Income and Market approach. Significant assumptions under the Income approach
included estimates of revenue growth, gross margin, and the selected discount rate. Significant assumptions under the Market
Approach include selection of revenue and EBITDA multiples based on selected guideline public companies and transactions.
Based on these assumptions, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, the fair value of the derivative was $11,223, and
is included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, and the related loss is recognized in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations, and classified as a non-cash change in derivative value under operating activities on the
accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows.

There are no other loans, obligations or commitments outstanding related to the Montage Credit Agreement as of December
31, 2016.

LITIGATION—From time to time the Company is involved in legal actions arising from its normal operations and is
presented with claims for damages arising out of its actions. Except for the matter described below, the Company cannot
predict the ultimate outcome, or reasonably estimate the probability or the range of loss, if any. If legal actions are not
resolved in the Company’s favor, losses arising from the results of litigation or settlements, as well as ongoing defense costs,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

On or around June 16, 2015, a putative class action case was filed in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles
alleging wage and hour violations, including, but not limited to, claims related to meal and rest period violations. The
Company settled the putative class action case and is awaiting court approval. The Company agreed to a $1,121 settlement
and recorded an expense of $1,009 in cost of products sold in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2016. The Company has obtained
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indemnity agreements from two separate staffing agencies and is seeking contribution and reimbursement of $112 as part of
the settlement costs.

NOTE 13 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company sponsors an employee benefit plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”),
whereby participants may contribute a percentage of their compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed under the
Code (the “Plan”). The Plan currently does not provide for employer contributions.

NOTE 14 – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
    

The minority interest holder in the Company charges the Company an annual management fee of $250, which is included in
selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Certain members of management serve as directors of a foundation, a Delaware non-stock corporation and Internal Revenue
Code section 501(c)(3) tax-exempt non-profit organization, which was formed in December 2015, whose principal activity is
metabolic studies. The Company expensed $1,630 that was paid to the foundation during the year ended December 31, 2016,
related to research and development expenses, and such amounts are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Certain members of management also served as directors of another foundation, a Delaware non-stock corporation formed in
December 2015, whose principal activity is metabolic studies. The Company expensed $1,682 that was paid to the foundation
during the year ended December 31, 2016, related to research and development expenses, and such amounts are included in
selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. This foundation was
dissolved during September 2016.

The Company issued unsecured subordinated notes in the amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016 (see
Note 8).

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements
were available to be issued.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company abandoned certain production machinery and equipment, furniture,
fixtures and equipment, and leasehold improvement as part of transition of the production process to co-manufacturers. The
Company recorded related gains and losses on assets disposed of in net loss on disposition of property and equipment during
the year ended December 31, 2017. Assets that will be disposed of subsequent to December 31, 2017 totaled $4,054, after
having been written down by the excess of the estimated carrying value over the estimated fair value less costs to sell, and
these assets are assets held for sale as of December 31, 2017. The Company recorded an impairment charge
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of $23,373 during the year ended December 31, 2017. These assets did not qualify as assets held for sale at December 31,
2016.

During November 2017, the Company entered into a new office facility lease for its headquarters. The lease commenced on
June 1, 2018; the lease term is 131 months; and contains free rent periods, escalation clauses and tenant improvement
allowances. Future total minimum rental payments related to the new office facility amount to $22,252.

During December 2017, the Company renegotiated and amended a contractual commitment for raw material used in the
production of protein bars that required minimum purchases through February 2018. The amendment changed the delivery
dates to align with the Company’s production schedule. The Company performed a similar analysis as compared to the
analysis in 2016, and based on the amendment determined that the contractual loss liability for future raw material deliveries
was no longer necessary. Therefore, the Company reversed the contractual loss liability of $18,301 (see Note 12), and the
resulting gain was included in cost of products sold in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December
31, 2017.

During 2018, the Company made a voluntary change to its accounting policy for inventory cost basis, effective January 1,
2018. Under the previous accounting policy, inventory items were recorded on a moving-average cost basis. Historically, the
Company was a manufacturer of its finished products. At the end of 2017, the Company stopped manufacturing, and moved to
utilizing outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its finished products. These co-manufacturers became fully turnkey
in early 2018. Based on these manufacturing changes, the Company determined that a change from a moving-average cost
basis to a standard cost basis for recording inventory items is preferable because it provides more current information to the
users of the consolidated financial statements. The effect of this change in accounting policy amounted to $2,858. In
accordance with applicable accounting guidance, a change in accounting cost basis is treated as a change in accounting
principle and requires retrospective application. The Company determined that it is impracticable to apply the effects of the
change in accounting cost basis to periods prior to January 1, 2018; therefore, the effect of this change in accounting policy
has been included in cost of products sold in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2018.

During 2018, the Company settled the putative class action case, referenced above in Note 12, and made a settlement payment
in the amount of $1,238.

During March 2018, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Quest Nutrition Limited, in London, England.

During May 2018, the Company entered into a new warehouse facility lease for a distribution center. The lease commenced on
September 6, 2018; the lease term is 79 months; and contains free rent periods and escalation clauses. Future total minimum
rental payments related to the new warehouse facility amount to $5,349.

On August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement with the Company along
with VMG Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation
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and related party of the Company. Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods
Company. Pursuant to the Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement, The Simply Good Foods Company will acquire Quest
Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby via Atkins Nutritionals, Inc.’s acquisition of 100% of
the equity interests of each of Voyage Holdings, LLC and VMG Quest Blocker, Inc. for a cash purchase price of $1,000,000,
which is expected to close before the end of fiscal 2019. The proceeds of which will be used, in part, to fund the VMG Exit
Payment and the outstanding debt.

******
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES    
    

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS    
(Unaudited)    
    

(In thousands) June 30, 2019  December 31, 2018
    
ASSETS    

CURRENT ASSETS:    
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 934  $ 2,111
  Accounts receivable, net 33,040  31,286
  Other receivables 2,696  1,527
  Inventory 35,769  33,399
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,289  3,239

      Total current assets 73,728 71,562

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—NET 10,641  10,539

INTERNAL-USE SOFTWARE—NET 3,442  3,252

OTHER ASSETS 221  326

TOTAL ASSETS $ 88,032 $ 85,679

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT    

CURRENT LIABILITIES:    
  Accounts payable $ 24,826  $ 21,955
  Accrued expenses 14,457  11,997
  Unearned revenue 101  143
  Line of credit 3,000  17,000
  Current portion of long-term debt 50,522  7,087
  Current portion of mandatorily redeemable preferred units 375,833  —

      Total current liabilities 468,739  58,182

LONG-TERM DEBT—Net of current portion —  46,978
DERIVATIVE 12,613  6,741
SUBORDINATED DEBT 9,686  9,686
MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS —  337,338
DEFERRED RENT AND TENANT IMPROVEMENT ALLOWANCE 5,513  5,019
OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES—Net of current portion —  21

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 7)    

MEMBERS' DEFICIT (408,519)  (378,286)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT $ 88,032 $ 85,679

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.    
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES    
    

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS    
(Unaudited)    
 Six months ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2019  2018

REVENUE—NET $ 160,855  $ 148,276

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 103,675  107,923

GROSS MARGIN 57,180  40,353

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 41,376  37,408

NET (GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (24)  507

OPERATING INCOME 15,828 2,438

OTHER EXPENSE 6  —

DERIVATIVE VALUATION LOSS (GAIN) 5,872  (230)

INTEREST EXPENSE 2,773  3,061

INTEREST EXPENSE RELATED TO MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS 38,495  31,013

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (31,318) (31,406)

TAX EXPENSE 13  5

NET LOSS $ (31,331)  $ (31,411)
    

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.    
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES    
    

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' DEFICIT   
(Unaudited)  
 Six months ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2019  2018

BALANCE—January 1 $ (378,286)  $ (319,008)
    

    

Distributions (4)  (2)
    

Employee stock compensation 1,102  1,222
    

Net loss (31,331)  (31,411)
    

BALANCE—June 30 $ (408,519)  $ (349,199)
    

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.    
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES    
    
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS    
(Unaudited)    
 Six months ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2019  2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    
Net loss $ (31,331)  $ (31,411)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization 1,098  96
(Gain) loss on disposition on property and equipment (24)  507
Stock-based compensation 4,064  1,076
Derivative valuation loss (gain) 5,872  (230)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 285  277
Accretion of mandatorily redeemable preferred units 38,495  31,013

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Accounts receivable (1,754)  (6,877)
Other receivables (1,169)  (2,194)
Inventory (2,370)  21,840
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets 2,055  (6,055)
Accounts payable 3,203  3,469
Accrued expenses (184)  (3,530)
Unearned revenue (42)  213
Other long-term liabilities 494  2,679

         Net cash provided by operating activities 18,692 10,873

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    
Payments for the acquisition of property and equipment (1,070)  (4,991)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 55  6,822
Payments for the acquisition of internal-use software (981)  (1,022)

         Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1,996)  809

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    
Borrowings under line of credit 1,000  —
Payments under line of credit (15,000)  (6,000)
Payments on term loan (3,828)  (10,276)
Payments of capital lease obligations (41)  (58)
Distributions paid (4)  (2)

         Net cash used in financing activities (17,873)  (16,336)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,177)  (4,654)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,111  6,024

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF YEAR $ 934  $ 1,370

   (Continued)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES    
    

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS    
(Unaudited)    
 Six months ended June 30,
(In thousands) 2019  2018
    

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:    
    

     Cash paid during the year for interest $ 2,470  $ 2,794
    

     Cash paid during the year for taxes $ 45  $ 66
    

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:    
    

Acquisition of property and equipment through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 86  $ 202
    

    Acquisition of software through accounts payable and accrued expenses $ —  $ 604
    

    

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.    (Concluded)
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VOYAGE HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands)

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

FORMATION OF BUSINESS—Voyage Holdings, LLC (the “Company”) was organized and established as a limited liability
company on March 19, 2015, in the state of Delaware to effectuate a minority interest sale (“Transaction”) in Voyage
Holdings, LLC to a private equity firm on March 24, 2015. Voyage Holdings, LLC has five ownership groups: one member
(288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units), another member (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units), various trusts (288,889 units, or 33.3%, of Class B Preferred Units
and 288,889 units, or 40.6%, of Class C Common Units) (collectively, the “Founding Members”), VMG Voyage Holdings,
LLC (“VMG”) (133,333 units, or 100%, of Class A Preferred Units and 133,333 units, or 18.8%, of Class C Common Units),
and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC (16,600,000 units, or 100%, of Class M Common Units). Aside from the holders of
Class M Common Units, which are not entitled to vote, the holders of Class A Preferred Units, Class B Preferred Units (except
Class B Preferred Units held by one member) and Class C Common Units shall be entitled to vote together as a single class.

Quest Nutrition, LLC (“Quest”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Voyage Holdings, LLC. Distributions are made from the
Company to its Founding Members, VMG Voyage Holdings, LLC and Voyage Employee Holdings, LLC for the payment of
income taxes and other approved distributions, funded from the Company’s wholly owned and consolidated operating
company, Quest Nutrition, LLC. On March 13, 2018, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, Quest Nutrition
Limited, in London, England.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company refinanced the business through the issuance of a senior secured credit
facility (see Note 4) to pay certain member distributions, extinguish existing indebtedness, and to provide additional
operational financing to support Quest Nutrition, LLC’s working capital needs.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY—The Company distributes a variety of protein-based food products in the United States and
worldwide. The Company utilizes outside co-manufacturers for the manufacture of its protein-based food products.
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION—The accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes of
the Company and its subsidiaries are unaudited. The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements reflect all adjustments and disclosures which are, in the Company’s opinion, necessary for a fair presentation of the
results of operations, financial position and cash flows for the indicated periods. All such adjustments were of a normal and
recurring nature. The results reported in these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be reported for the entire year and should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements referred to below. The accompanying December 31, 2018 balance sheet
data was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements and certain information and footnote disclosures required
by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”) have been condensed or omitted.

Refer to Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 audited
annual consolidated financial statements included in Exhibit 99.1 for a description of the Company’s significant accounting
policies.

LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN—The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared
assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of
liabilities in the normal course of business. As of the date these financials are issued, the Company has cumulative net losses to
date and significant negative working capital. As fully described below in Note 5, the Company is obligated to pay an exit
payment to VMG of approximately $449,999 in April 2020. Further, as described in Note 4, an additional balloon payment
related to the term loan is due in March 2020. As a result, there is a substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
 
The Company’s plans include using the proceeds, in part, of the sale of its equity to fund the exit payment and term loan. As
described in Note 9, the Company entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement to sell 100% of its equity interest for a
cash purchase price of $1,000,000. Although management believes such plans should provide the Company sufficient
financing to meet its needs, successful completion of such plans is dependent on factors outside of the Company’s control. As
such, management cannot conclude that such plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. As a result, management has concluded that the aforementioned conditions, raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are
issued.
 
Failure to obtain additional funding would result in cash flows to be insufficient to fund the Company’s obligations and
continue to raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and
classification of assets, or the amounts and classification of liabilities, or any adjustments that may result from uncertainty
related to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS—Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses the following hierarchy in measuring the fair value of the
Company’s assets and liabilities, focusing on the most observable inputs when available:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than quoted prices included with Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices in markets that are not active for identical or similar assets and liabilities,
or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for sustainability the full term
of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 – Valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement of the
assets and liabilities. Inputs reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and
the risk inherent in the inputs to the model.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

FAIR VALUE METHODS—The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. The carrying amount of the term loan (see Note 4) and line of credit approximates fair value as the
contractual interest rates are based on variable market rates, which are comparable to rates of returns for instruments of similar
credit risk. The fair value of the subordinated notes (see Note 4) form related parties is not readily determinable by virtue of
the nature of the related parties’ relationship with the Company. The fair values of stock-based compensation (see Note 6) and
the derivative (see Note 7) are determined at the end of each reporting periods based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy. The Company has accounted for this obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability measured
at fair value on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets (mandatorily redeemable preferred units). There
were no transfers between any of the levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Certain assets, including long-lived assets and internal-use software, are also subject to measurement at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis if they are deemed to be impaired as a result of an impairment review.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS—In March 2019, December 2018, July 2018 and February 2016, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2019-01, No. 2018-20,
ASU No. 2018-11, ASU No. 2018-10 and ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), respectively, which requires lessees to
recognize on the balance sheet assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than
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twelve months. Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows
arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike
current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet—the new ASU will require both
types of leases to be recognized on the balance sheet. This new guidance will take effect for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. As originally written, this guidance shall be applied at the beginning of the earliest period presented using
the modified retrospective approach, which includes a number of practical expedients that an entity may elect to apply. Early
application of this guidance is permitted. In July 2018, the FASB made targeted improvements to the standard, including
providing an additional and optional transition method. Under this method, an entity initially applies the standard at the
adoption date, including the election of certain transition reliefs, and recognizes a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the
potential effects on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles–Goodwill and Other–Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-
40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract, to help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement (hosting
arrangement) by providing guidance for determining when the arrangement includes a software license. This guidance is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and the interim periods there within. Early
application of this guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on
the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework–Changes
to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application of this
guidance is permitted. The Company is evaluating the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s
disclosures.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services
from nonemployees. The amendments specify that Topic 718 applies to all share-based payment transactions in which a
grantor acquires goods or services to be used or consumed in a grantor’s own operations by issuing share-based payment
awards. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 and the interim periods there within.
Early application of this guidance is permitted but no earlier than an entity’s adoption of Topic 606. The Company does not
currently issue share-based payment awards for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees, but the Company will
evaluate the adoption of this guidance and the potential effects on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures in the future if such transactions occur.
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In September 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), Leases (Topic 840), and Leases (Topic 842): Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to the Staff
Announcement at the July 20, 2017 EITF Meeting and Rescission of Prior SEC Staff Announcements and Observer
Comments. The SEC Observer said that the SEC staff would not object if entities that are considered public business entities
only because their financial statements are required to be included in another entity’s SEC filing use the effective dates for
private companies when they adopt Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Customers with Contracts
and ASC 842, Leases. This would include entities whose financial statements are included in another entity’s SEC filing
because they are significant acquirees under Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X. The effective date for these entities is the same as
the effective date and transition requirements for the amendments for ASU No. 2014-09 (discussed below) and ASU No.
2016-02 (discussed above).

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification
Accounting, clarifying when a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as a
modification. This guidance requires modification accounting if the fair value, vesting condition or the classification of the
award is not the same immediately before and after a change to the terms and conditions of the award. The Company adopted
the guidance for the year ended December 31, 2018, and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying
condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2016, May 2016, April 2016, March 2016, August 2015 and May 2014, the FASB issued ASUs No. 2016-20,
No. 2016-12, No. 2016-10, No. 2016-08, No. 2015-14 and No. 2014-09, Revenue from Customers with Contracts (Topic 606),
respectively, to amend the accounting guidance for revenue recognition. This guidance requires revenue recognition to depict
the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance sets forth a new revenue recognition model that requires
identifying the contract, identifying the performance obligations, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to performance obligations, and recognizing the revenue upon satisfaction of performance obligations. The amendments
in the ASU can be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or on a modified retrospective basis
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the update recognized at the date of the initial application along with additional
disclosures. These new standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim
reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Accordingly, the Company plans to
adopt this ASU on January 1, 2019, on an annual basis, using the modified retrospective method, and does not expect a
material impact on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash
Receipts and Cash Payments, to provide guidance for areas where there is diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts
and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted this guidance beginning

12



January 1, 2018 and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU added a new impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss
(CECL) model) that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes an
allowance for its estimate of expected credit losses and applies to most debt instruments, trade receivables, lease receivables,
financial guarantee contracts, and other loan commitments. The CECL model does not have a minimum threshold for
recognition of impairment losses and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on assets that have a low risk of loss.
This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2020, including the interim periods there within. The
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of these changes on the condensed consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 – INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following:

 June 30, 2019  December 31, 2018
    

Raw materials and packaging materials $ 8,352  $ 9,557
Finished goods 27,417  23,842
    

Inventory $ 35,769  $ 33,399

NOTE 4 – INDEBTEDNESS

As part of the transaction described in Note 1, on March 25, 2015, the Company recapitalized the business through the
issuance of a senior secured credit facility and extinguished existing indebtedness on the former revolving line of credit and
former notes payable with a former lender.

On March 25, 2015, the Company entered into a credit agreement in the total amount of $120,000 with a syndicate of lenders
(the “Lenders”). A term loan for $95,000 and a revolving line of credit for $25,000 were issued (the “Credit Agreement”). The
Credit Agreement was amended on October 22, 2015, increasing the revolving line of credit to $35,000 and increasing the
aggregate credit facility under the Credit Agreement to $130,000. The Credit Agreement allows the Company to borrow
additional amounts from the Lenders through standby letters of credit and swing line loans, but the standby letters of credit
borrowed reduce the availability of the revolving line of credit. The Credit Agreement has quarterly contractual maturities
through March 2020.

On April 29, 2016, the Credit Agreement was further amended to authorize the Company to enter into a note purchase
agreement with the Founding Members, whereby the Founding Members agreed to purchase from the Company unsecured
subordinated promissory notes (the
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“Notes”) due in 2020 in the aggregate principal amount of up to $20,000. The Company issued unsecured subordinated notes
in the aggregate principal amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016, maturing on September 25, 2020.
The Notes bore interest at a rate of 10% per annum during the year ended December 31, 2016. This rate decreased to 5% per
annum beginning on January 1, 2017. Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly beginning June 30, 2016, and principal
payments or prepayments before the maturity date are subject to certain restrictions. For the six months ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, interest expense related to the Notes was $240 for each respective period, and is included in interest expense in the
accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The Company is required to meet certain financial and nonfinancial covenants in accordance with the terms of the amended
Credit Agreement. In addition, the Lenders have been granted a security interest in all assets of the Company. As of June 30,
2019 the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants under the amended Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company was not in compliance with certain covenants under the amended Credit Agreement.
Subsequent to December 31, 2018, the Company obtained a waiver as of December 31, 2018, and an additional amendment to
the amended Credit Agreement to certain of the financial and nonfinancial covenants beginning March 31, 2019. It is probable
that the Company will meet its financial and nonfinancial covenants from the date of these condensed consolidated financial
statements going forward.

LINE OF CREDIT—The line of credit bears a variable rate of interest at the London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
monthly floating rate, plus 3% (5.94% per annum as of June 30, 2019). The Company is also subject to an unused
commitment fee equal to 0.5% based on the aggregate amount of available revolving loan commitments. The outstanding
standby letters of credit balance as of June 30, 2019, amounted to $4,800, reducing the available revolving line of credit to
$30,200 before outstanding draws. As of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company had an outstanding balance of
$3,000 and $17,000, respectively, on the revolving line of credit, and the remaining availability is $27,200 as of June 30,
2019. For the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, interest expense related to the revolving line of credit was $544 and
$818, respectively, which is recorded in interest expense in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of
operations.

TERM LOAN—The term loan of $95,000 bears a variable rate of interest at the LIBOR monthly floating rate, plus 3.5%
(6.44% per annum at June 30, 2019). The term loan is payable in equal quarterly installments of principal of $1,914, plus
interest, with the remaining balance due on March 25, 2020. As of June 30, 2019, the term loan is included in current portion
of long-term debt in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets and is net of unamortized debt issuance costs of
$427. As of December 31, 2018, the term loan is included in long-term debt in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheets and is net of unamortized debt issuance costs of $712, of which $570 is included in current portion of long-
term debt and $142 is included in long-term debt in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. For the six
months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, interest expense related to the term loan amounted to $1,701 and $1,717, respectively,
and expenses for the amortization of deferred financing fees related to the issuance of the credit facility totaled $285 and $280,
respectively.
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NOTE 5 – MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED UNITS

In regard to the 133,333 Class A Preferred Units that were sold to VMG on March 25, 2015, the Company is obligated to
make a payment on the date that is 30 days following the 5th anniversary of the sale (the “VMG Exit Payment”). Under
certain conditions, the Company may defer a portion of the VMG Exit Payment. The Company does not expect to meet those
conditions; therefore, the payment is due in April 2020. If the Company defaults on the VMG Exit Payment, Class C
Common Unit members receive certain additional Class C Common Units and interest accrues thereon.

The Company has accounted for this obligation associated with the Class A Preferred Units as a liability measured at fair
value at inception in 2015 and each period thereafter through the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with accounting guidance for distinguishing liabilities from equity. This liability will be accreted to the
redemption amount, with any accretion amounts being charged to interest expense within the accompanying condensed
consolidated statement of operations. The Company has not separately bifurcated or accounted for the deferral or default
features related to the VMG Exit Payment within the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

This payment is equal to three times (3.0x) the aggregate amount of capital contributions made with respect to the Class A
Preferred Units, minus the sum of all prior distributions made with respect to the Class A Preferred Units (other than tax
distributions), plus any tax distributions that the holder of the Class A Preferred Units is owed with respect to net taxable
income allocated to the Class A Preferred Units for any period prior to the date that the VMG Exit Payment is actually paid.
Upon full payment of the VMG Exit Payment, the Class A Preferred Units and Class C Common Units purchased by VMG
from the Founding Members pursuant to the sale shall be cancelled, and the holders shall have no further rights to
distributions and shall no longer be members of the Company.

The mandatorily redeemable financial instrument was initially recorded on March 31, 2015, as a liability, for $150,000. As of
December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019, the liability associated with the Class A Preferred Units increased to $337,338 and
$375,833, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, interest expense related to mandatorily
redeemable preferred units was $38,495 and $31,013, respectively. If the Company were to settle the liability as of December
31, 2018 or June 30, 2019, the Company will have to pay VMG the full (3.0x) payment of $449,999. A change in the fair
value of the Class A Preferred Units has no impact on the settlement price of this instrument.

NOTE 6 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 30, 2017, the Company’s limited liability company agreement was amended to authorize the grant of 16,600,000
Class M Common Units of the limited liability company. Certain Quest Employees, as defined in the agreement, are eligible
to be granted units, which are intended to qualify and shall be treated as profit interests. Thus, no capital contributions are
necessary. The Company believes that such unit grants align the interest of its employees with those of its shareholders.
Generally, the granted units vest in equal installments on each of the five-year anniversaries following either the date of hire,
the date of grant or another
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specified date, which is identified in each grant agreement. The granted units provide for accelerated vesting if there is a Sale
Transaction as defined in the agreement.

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense based on the grant‐date fair value of units over the applicable
service period. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to measure the fair value, which requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions. Stock-based compensation expense for employee awards which vest based upon continued
employment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. For
non-employees, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense based on the then-current fair values of the units
at each financial reporting date, based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Compensation recorded during each period
is adjusted in subsequent periods for changes in the units’ fair value until the units are settled.

During the six months ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to units
granted in the amount of $4,064, of which $1,102 of expense relates to current employees and $2,962 of expense relates to
non-employees. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense
related to units granted in the amount of $1,076, of which $1,222 of expense relates to current employees and $146 of income
relates to non-employees. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in selling, general, and administrative expenses in
the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The following table summarizes the granted unit activity for the six months ended June 30, 2019:
    

 
Class M

Common Units
Weighted Average

Grant-Date Fair Value
Non-vested—December 31, 2018 9,638,120 $ 0.92
   

Granted 475,000 0.53
Vested (1,554,780) 1.05
Forfeited (60,000) 1.18
                              

Non-vested—June 30, 2019 8,498,340 $ 0.88

As of June 30, 2019, total unrecognized stock‐based compensation cost related to unvested units granted was approximately
$7,052 which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.8 years.

NOTE 7 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

DERIVATIVE—Quest entered into a loan agreement dated June 6, 2012, by and between the Company and Montage Capital
II L.P. (“Montage”), as amended on August 11, 2014, March 24, 2015, and September 25, 2017 (as amended, the “Montage
Credit Agreement”). Under the
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Montage Credit Agreement, the Company is obligated to pay Montage a cash fee (“Success Fee”) equal to a defined
percentage (“Success Percentage”) of the proceeds received by the members of the Company raised in connection with a
Liquidity Event (as defined in the Montage Credit Agreement).

During 2015, the Company executed a partial Liquidity Event upon sale of minority interest of units in the Company, which
resulted in the cash payment of $2,775 to Montage. This cash payment represented a partial Liquidity Event and reduced the
Success Percentage.

The settlement of the Success Fee meets the definition of a derivative recognized at fair value and was remeasured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value. The fair value of the derivative value was determined based on the Success Percentage of
the equity value of the Company. The equity value of the Company was determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.
Significant assumptions made in the analysis included estimates of revenue growth, operating margin, and the selected
discount rate. Based on these assumptions, the fair value of the derivative was $12,613 and $6,741 as of June 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively, and is included in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. The change in
fair value resulted in a loss of $5,872 and a gain of $230 for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which
is included in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations, and is classified as a non-cash change in
derivative value under operating activities in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

There are no other loans, obligations or commitments outstanding related to the Montage Credit Agreement as of June 30,
2019.

LITIGATION—From time to time the Company is involved in legal actions arising from its normal operations and is
presented with claims for damages arising out of its actions. Except for the matter described below, the Company cannot
predict the ultimate outcome, or reasonably estimate the probability or the range of loss, if any. If legal actions are not
resolved in the Company’s favor, losses arising from the results of litigation or settlements, as well as ongoing defense costs,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

On or around June 16, 2015, a putative class action case was filed in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles,
alleging wage and hour violations, including, but not limited to, claims related to meal and rest period violations. The
Company settled the putative class action case and made a settlement payment in the amount of $1,238 in July 2018.

NOTE 8 – TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The minority interest holder in the Company charges the Company an annual management fee of $250, paid in semi-annual
amounts of $125. For the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, $125 is included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Certain members of management serve as directors of a foundation, a Delaware non-stock corporation and Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3) tax-exempt nonprofit organization,
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which was formed in December 2015, whose principal activity is metabolic studies. The Company expensed $364 and $339
that was paid to the foundation during the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, related to research and
development expenses, and such amounts are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying
condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The Company issued unsecured subordinated notes in the amount of $9,686 to the Founding Members on April 29, 2016 (see
Note 4).

NOTE 9 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2019, the date the condensed consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

On August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement with the Company along
with VMG Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation and related party of the Company. Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. is a wholly
owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods Company. Pursuant to the Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement, The Simply
Good Foods Company will acquire Quest Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby via Atkins
Nutritionals, Inc.’s acquisition of 100% of the equity interests of each of Voyage Holdings, LLC and VMG Quest Blocker, Inc.
for a cash purchase price of $1,000,000, which is expected to close before the end of fiscal 2019. The proceeds of which will
be used, in part, to fund the VMG Exit Payment and the outstanding debt.

******
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information gives effect to the planned acquisition of Quest Nutrition, LLC (“Quest”), by Atkins Nutritionals, Inc.'s, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods Company (“Simply Good Foods” or the “Company”), of 100% of the equity interests of each of Voyage Holdings, LLC
(“Voyage”) and VMG Quest Blocker, Inc. (“VMG Blocker”) for a cash purchase price of $1,000,000,000 (the “Acquisition”) and the related financing transactions to fund the
Acquisition, further described in Note 1—Description of the Transactions and Basis of Presentation. The unaudited pro forma combined financial information set forth below
has been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what the combined company’s financial position or results of
operations actually would have been had the Acquisition been completed on the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma combined financial information does not
purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company.

The unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet gives effect to the Acquisition as if it had occurred on May 25, 2019. The unaudited pro forma combined statements of
operations each give effect to the Acquisition as if it had occurred on August 27, 2017 (the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2018).

The historical consolidated financial information has been adjusted in the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (1)
directly attributable to the acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined
results. The unaudited pro forma combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined financial
statements. In addition, the unaudited pro forma combined financial information was based on and should be read in conjunction with the following historical consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes of the Company and Voyage for the applicable periods, which are incorporated by reference into this filing:

• Audited historical financial statements of Simply Good Foods as of and for the year ended August 25, 2018, and the related notes included in Simply Good
Foods’ Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on October 24, 2018;

• Audited historical financial statements of Voyage as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes included in Exhibit 99.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K to which this Exhibit 99.3 is attached;

• Audited historical financial statements of Voyage as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes included in Exhibit 99.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K to which this Exhibit 99.3 is attached;

• Unaudited historical financial statements of Simply Good Foods as of and for the nine months ended May 25, 2019 and the related notes included in Simply
Good Foods’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 2, 2019; and

• Unaudited historical financial statements of Voyage as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and the related notes included in Exhibit 99.2 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K to which this Exhibit 99.3 is attached.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information has been prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under the provisions of Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”). The purchase price will be allocated to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date, and any excess value of the consideration transferred over the net assets will
be recognized as goodwill. The Company has made a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the assumed acquisition
date of May 25, 2019 based on management’s preliminary valuation of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed using information
currently available. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting could occur and these differences could have a material impact on the
accompanying unaudited pro forma combined financial statements and the Company’s future results of operations and financial position.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information does not reflect any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may
achieve as a result of the acquisition, nor the costs that may be incurred to achieve such benefits.
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The Simply Good Foods Company and Subsidiaries
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

As of May 25, 2019

 

The Simply Good
Foods Company

(Historical)  

Voyage Holdings,
LLC (Historical, as

adjusted) 1  
Pro Forma

Adjustments  
Financing

Adjustments  
Pro Forma
Combined

(in thousands)          
Assets          

Cash and cash equivalents $ 247,618  934  (1,001,072) A 858,400 F,H $ 105,880
Accounts receivable, net 42,809  35,663  —  —  78,472
Inventories 41,574  35,769  3,902 K —  81,245
Prepaid expenses 3,318  1,289  —  —  4,607
Other current assets 3,870  73  —  —  3,943
Total current assets 339,189  73,728  (997,170)  858,400  274,147
Property and equipment, net 2,460  10,641  —  —  13,101
Intangible assets, net 307,765  3,442  840,000 B —  1,151,207
Goodwill 471,427  —  110,403 C —  581,830
Other long-term assets 3,768  221  —  —  3,989

Total assets $ 1,124,609  88,032  (46,767)  858,400  $ 2,024,274

          

Liabilities and stockholders’
equity          
Current liabilities          

Accounts payable $ 17,326  24,826  —  —  $ 42,152
Accrued interest 1,478  —  —  —  1,478

Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities 19,841  14,558  18,960 D —  53,359
Current maturities of long-term
debt 655  53,522  (53,522) E 4,800

F
5,455

Mandatorily redeemable
preferred units —  375,833  (375,833) J —  —

Total current liabilities 39,300  468,739  (410,395)  4,800  102,444
Long-term liabilities          
Long-term debt, less current
maturities 190,429  9,686  (9,686) F 465,600 F 656,029
Deferred income taxes 64,301  —  —  —  64,301
Other long-term liabilities 593  18,126  (18,126) G —  593

Total liabilities 294,623  496,551  (438,207)  470,400  823,367

          
Commitments and contingencies          
          
Stockholders’ equity:          

Preferred stock —  —  —  —  —
Common stock 819  —  —  —  819
Treasury stock (1,664)  —  —  —  (1,664)
Additional paid-in capital 732,181  —  —  388,000 H 1,120,181
Retained earnings
(Accumulated deficit) 99,739  (408,519)  391,440 I —  82,660
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss (1,089)  —  —  —  (1,089)

Total stockholders’ equity
(deficit) 829,986  (408,519)  391,440  388,000  1,200,907
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 1,124,609  88,032  (46,767)  858,400 $ 2,024,274

1 Refer to Note 3 for additional details regarding reclassifications to conform with that of Simply Good Foods.
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The Simply Good Foods Company and Subsidiaries
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the 52 weeks ended August 25, 2018

The Simply
Good Foods
Company

(Historical)  

Voyage Holdings,
LLC (Historical,

as adjusted) 1  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

 

Financing
Adjustments

 

Pro Forma
Combined

 
(in thousands)           
Net sales $ 431,429  277,120  —  —  $ 708,549  
Cost of goods sold 223,873  172,243  —  —  396,116  
Gross profit 207,556  104,877  —  —  312,433  
Operating expenses:           
Distribution 19,685  13,039  —  —  32,724  
Selling 17,802  4,378  —  —  22,180  
Marketing 41,290  21,490  —  —  62,780  
General and administrative 56,333  54,873  188 A —  111,394  
Depreciation and amortization 7,672  2,849  8,000 B —  18,521  
Business transaction costs 2,259  —  —  —  2,259  
(Gain) in fair value change of
contingent consideration - TRA
liability (2,848)  —  —  —  (2,848)  
Other expense 633  520  —  —  1,153  
Impairment loss -  29,693  —  —  29,693  
Total operating expenses 142,826  126,842  8,188  —  277,856  

Income (loss) from operations 64,730  (21,965)  (8,188)  —  34,577  

Other income (expense):           
Interest expense (12,551)  (5,853)  5,853 C (29,435) C (41,986)  
Interest expense related to
mandatorily redeemable preferred
units —  (58,850)  58,850 E —  —  
Gain on foreign currency
transactions 97  —  —  —  97  
Other income 815  673  —  —  1,488  
Derivative valuation gain (loss) -  2,253  (2,253) F —  —  
Total other (expense) income (11,639)  (61,777)  62,450  (29,435)  (40,401)  

Income (loss) before taxes 53,091  (83,742)  54,262  (29,435)  (5,824)  

Income tax (benefit) expense (17,364)  118  (8,254) D (8,242) D (33,742)  
Net income (loss) $ 70,455  (83,860)  62,516  (21,193)  $ 27,918  

Earnings per share from net income:           
Basic $ 1.00  —  —  —  $ 0.33 H

Diluted $ 0.96  —  —  —  $ 0.32 H

Weighted average shares
outstanding:           

Basic 70,582,149  —  —  —  84,592,657 H

Diluted 73,681,355  —  —  —  87,691,863 H

    
1 Refer to Note 3 for additional details regarding reclassifications to conform with that of Simply Good Foods.
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Simply Good Foods Company and Subsidiaries
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the 39 weeks ended May 25, 2019

The Simply Good
Foods Company

(Historical)  

Voyage Holdings,
LLC (Historical,

as adjusted) 1  
Pro Forma

Adjustments  
Financing

Adjustments  
Pro Forma
Combined  

(in thousands)           
Net sales $ 384,199  239,857  —  —  $ 624,056  
Cost of goods sold 202,190  142,408  —  —  344,598  
Gross profit 182,009  97,449  —  —  279,458  
Operating expenses:           
Distribution 17,327  9,647  —  —  26,974  
Selling 9,191  3,634  —  —  12,825  
Marketing 38,407  14,491  —  —  52,898  
General and administrative 47,994  42,268  141 A —  90,403  
Depreciation and amortization 5,754  1,467  6,000 B —  13,221  
Business transaction costs 2,087  450  (450) G —  2,087  
Loss in fair value change of
contingent consideration – TRA
liability 533  —  —  —  533  
Other expense 22  —  —  —  22  
Net loss on disposition of property
and equipment —  18  —  —  18  
Total operating expenses 121,315  71,975  5,691  —  198,981  
           
Income (loss) from operations 60,694  25,474  (5,691)  —  80,477  
           
Other (expense) income:           
Interest income 2,731  —  —  —  2,731  
Interest expense (10,033)  (4,215)  4,215 C (21,928) C (31,961)  
Interest expense related to
mandatorily redeemable preferred
units —  (56,238)  56,238 E —  —  
Gain on settlement of TRA liability 1,534  —  —  —  1,534  
Loss on foreign currency
transactions (421)  (6)  —  —  (427)  
Other income 176  —  —  —  176  
Derivative valuation (loss) gain —  (5,757)  5,757 F —  —  
Total other (expense) income (6,013)  (66,216)  66,210  (21,928)  (27,947)  
           
Income (loss) before taxes 54,681  (40,742)  60,519  (21,928)  52,530  
           
Income tax expense (benefit) 13,236  30  5,491 D (6,140) D 12,617  
Net income (loss) $ 41,445  (40,772)  55,028  (15,788)  $ 39,913  
           
Earnings per share from net income:           
Basic $ 0.52  —  —  —  $ 0.42 H

Diluted $ 0.49  —  —  —  $ 0.40 H

Weighted average shares
outstanding:           

Basic 80,362,978  —  —  —  94,373,486 H

Diluted 84,695,703  —  —  —  98,706,211 H

1 Refer to Note 3 for additional details regarding reclassifications to conform with that of Simply Good Foods.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. Description of the Transactions and Basis of Presentation

The Transactions

On August 21, 2019, Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. entered into a Stock and Unit Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Voyage Holdings LLC along with VMG
Quest Blocker, Inc., a Delaware corporation and related party of Voyage Holdings LLC. Atkins Nutritionals, Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Simply Good Foods
Company.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company will acquire Quest Nutrition, LLC at the closing of the transactions contemplated thereby (the “Acquisition”), via Atkins’
acquisition of 100% of the equity interests of each of Voyage and VMG Blocker for a cash purchase price of $1.0 billion. Quest Nutrition, LLC is wholly owned by Voyage.

The equity interests purchased include the Class A units of Voyage which are liability-classified in the historical financial statements of Voyage. The purchase price attributable
to the Class A units is approximately $450 million and will be referred to throughout the unaudited pro forma financial information as the “VMG Exit Payment”.

In order to finance the Acquisition, (a) Simply Good Foods intends to raise an estimated $400 million via the issuance of shares of its common stock, and (b) Simply Good
Foods intends to borrow an additional $480 million under the First Lien Credit Agreement (the “New Term Loan”) (together with the Acquisition, the “Transactions”).

Pro Forma Adjustments

The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations illustrate the effects of the Transactions as if they had been completed on August 27, 2017, and the unaudited pro
forma combined balance sheet reflects the effects of the Transactions as if they had been completed on May 25, 2019. The historical consolidated financial information has
been adjusted to give pro forma effect to events that are: (i) directly attributable to the Transactions, (ii) factually supportable, and (iii) with respect to the unaudited pro forma
combined statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact. The pro forma adjustments are preliminary and based on estimates of the purchase consideration and
estimates of fair value and useful lives of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

ASC 805 requires, among other things, that assets and liabilities acquired be recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date. Financial statements of Simply Good Foods
issued after completion of the acquisition will reflect such fair values, measured as of the acquisition date, which will be different than the preliminary estimated fair values
included in these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements. These differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma combined
financial statements and the Company’s future results of operations and financial position.

Historical Information

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information was derived from Simply Good Foods’ and Voyage’s historical consolidated financial statements, which were both
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Simply Good Foods and Voyage have different fiscal year ends, with Simply Good Foods’ fiscal year being the last Saturday of August and Voyage’s fiscal year end being
December 31. Because the year ends differ by more than 93 days, Voyage’s financial information is required to be adjusted to a period within 93 days of Simply Good Foods’
fiscal year end. For the purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the 52 weeks ended August 25, 2018, Voyage’s unaudited
consolidated statement of operations for the twelve months ended June 30, 2018 was derived by adding the historical unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the six
months ended June 30, 2018 to the audited consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, and deducting the historical unaudited
consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2017. For the purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the
39 weeks ended May 25, 2019, Voyage’s unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended June 30, 2019 was derived by adding the historical
unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2019, to the audited consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2018 and deducting the historical unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2018. The historical consolidated financial
information of Simply Good Foods was combined with the adjusted historical consolidated Voyage financial information as follows:

• The unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet as of May 25, 2019 combines the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of Simply Good Foods as of May 25, 2019
and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of Voyage as of June 30, 2019.

• The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the 52 weeks ended August 25, 2018 combines the audited consolidated statement of operations of
Simply Good Foods for the 52 weeks ended August 25, 2018 with the unaudited consolidated statement of operations of Voyage for the twelve months ended June
30, 2018.

• The unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the 39 weeks ended May 25, 2019 combines the unaudited consolidated statement of operations of
Simply Good Foods for the 39 weeks ended May 25, 2019 with the unaudited consolidated statement of operations of Voyage for the nine months ended June 30,
2019.
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As a result, the unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations do not contain Voyage’s results of operations for the period between July 1, 2018 and September 30,
2018. Voyage’s revenues and net loss for this period were approximately $68.9 million and $(20.5) million, respectively.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information has been prepared using Simply Good Foods’ significant accounting policies as set forth in our audited consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018. Certain reclassification and accounting policy alignment adjustments have been made in order to conform
Voyage’s consolidated historical consolidated financial statements to Simply Good Foods’ consolidated financial statement presentation. Refer to Note 3—Accounting Policy
Alignment and Reclassifications for more details.

2. Estimated Purchase Consideration and Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

The estimated preliminary purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

Estimated Purchase Consideration  
Consideration paid to selling shareholders $ 450,135
Settlement of VMG Exit Payment 450,000
Settlement of outstanding debt 77,865
Settlement of Montage success fee 14,300
Settlement of transaction bonuses 7,772
Unclaimed workers compensation 600
Reimbursement of transaction expenses 400

 $ 1,001,072

The table below represents the preliminary purchase price allocation based on estimates, assumptions, valuations and other analyses as of May 25, 2019, that have not been
finalized in order to make a definitive allocation. Accordingly, the pro forma adjustments to allocate the purchase consideration will remain preliminary until management
finalizes the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The final amounts allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed are dependent upon certain valuations
and other studies that have not yet been completed, and as previously stated could differ materially from the amounts presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements.
The total preliminary estimated purchase consideration as shown in the table above is allocated to the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of Voyage based on their
estimated fair values as if the Acquisition had occurred on May 25, 2019, which is the assumed acquisition date for purposes of the pro forma balance sheet (in thousands):

Assets acquired

Current assets $ 77,630
Property and equipment 10,641
Intangible assets 843,442
Other long-term assets 221

Total assets acquired 931,934

Liabilities assumed  
Current liabilities 41,265
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases —
Long term portion of long-term debt and capital leases —
Other long-term liabilities —
Deferred tax liability, net —
Total liabilities assumed 41,265
Net assets acquired, excluding goodwill 890,669
Total preliminary purchase consideration 1,001,072
Goodwill $ 110,403

As of the closing date of the Acquisition, the recorded value of our intangible assets will be adjusted for the preliminary purchase price allocation. The fair value and useful
lives assigned to the identifiable intangible assets have been estimated based on preliminary assumptions. These estimated fair values and useful lives are considered
preliminary and are subject to change. Any change in the amount of the final purchase price allocated to amortizable, definite-lived intangible assets could materially affect the
carrying amount and related amortization expense of such assets.

3. Accounting Policy Alignment and Reclassifications

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information has been prepared using Simply Good Foods’ significant accounting policies as set forth in our audited consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended August 25, 2018. Based on the procedures performed to date, the accounting policies of Voyage are similar in most material
respects to Simply Good Foods’ accounting policies.

As more information becomes available, we will complete a more detailed review of Voyage’s accounting policies. As a result of that review, differences could be identified
between the accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed, could have a material impact on the combined financial statements.
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Certain historical financial statement line items of Voyage were renamed in order to conform to Simply Good Foods’ presentation as follows:

• Prepaid expenses and other current assets was reclassified as Prepaid expenses;
• Internal-use software—net was reclassified as Intangible assets, net;
• Other assets was reclassified as Other long-term assets;
• Subordinated debt was reclassified as Long-term debt, less current maturities
• Members’ deficit was reclassified as Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit);
• Revenue—net was reclassified as Net sales.
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Simply Good Foods identified other reclassification adjustments that were necessary to conform Voyage’s financial statement presentation to that of Simply Good Foods. For
purposes of the pro forma financial statements, Voyage’s historical balance sheet and statements of operations have been adjusted to reflect these reclassifications.

  

Historical Voyage
Holdings, LLC

presentation  

Reclassification adjustment
to conform to Simply Good

Foods presentation  

Revised Voyage
Holdings, LLC

historical

Balance Sheet       
As of May 25, 2019       
(in thousands)       

Other receivables  $ 2,696  $ (2,696)  $ —
Accounts receivable, net  33,040  2,623  35,663
Other current assets  —  73  73

       
Accrued expenses  14,457  (14,457)  —
Unearned revenue  101  (101)  —
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  —  14,558  14,558

       
Line of credit  3,000  (3,000)  —
Current portion of long-term debt  50,522  (50,522)  —
Current maturities of long-term debt  —  53,522  53,522

       
Derivative  12,613  (12,613)  —
Deferred rent and tenant improvement allowance  5,513  (5,513)  —
Other long-term liabilities  —  18,126  18,126

       
Statement of Operations       
39 weeks ended May 25, 2019       
(in thousands)       

Cost of products sold  156,972  (156,972)  —
Selling, general and administrative expenses  57,393  (57,393)  —
Cost of goods sold  —  142,408  142,408
Distribution  —  9,647  9,647
Selling  —  3,634  3,634
Marketing  —  14,491  14,491
General and administrative  —  42,268  42,268
Depreciation and amortization  —  1,467  1,467
Business transaction costs  —  450  450

       
Other Expense  (6)  6  —
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions  —  (6)  (6)

       
Statement of Operations       
52 weeks ended August 25, 2018       
(in thousands)       

Cost of products sold  192,096  (192,096)  —
Selling, general and administrative expenses  76,776  (76,776)  —
Cost of goods sold  —  172,243  172,243
Distribution  —  13,039  13,039
Selling  —  4,378  4,378
Marketing  —  21,490  21,490
General and administrative  —  54,873  54,873
Depreciation and amortization  —  2,849  2,849
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4. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet Adjustments

A. Reflects the repayment of Voyage’s historical indebtedness, settlement of equity awards and unclaimed workers' compensation, payment of transaction costs and payment
of transaction bonuses that were paid to certain employees in connection with the close of the Transactions, as follows (in thousands):

Repayment of long-term historical indebtedness $ (9,686)
Repayment of short-term historical indebtedness (53,949)
Settlement of accrued expenses (14,230)
Settlement of VMG Exit Payment (450,000)
Settlement of Voyage transaction costs directly attributable to the Acquisition (i) (400)
Settlement of Montage success fee (ii) (14,300)
Payment of transaction bonuses (iii) (7,772)
Cash consideration paid to sellers (450,135)
Settlement of unclaimed workers’ compensation (600)

 $ (1,001,072)

i. The pro forma statements of operations have not been adjusted for these costs as they do not have a continuing impact.
ii. Represents the success fee payment to Montage Capital II L.P., a prior lender, that was triggered (single trigger) as a result of the Acquisition.
iii. Represents bonus amounts paid to key officers and employees of Quest for achieving a successful sale of the company.

B. Represents the adjustment to step-up our identified intangible assets to their estimated fair value based on our preliminary purchase price allocation (in thousands):

  
Historical Net

Book Value  
Estimated
Fair Value  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Brands  $ —  $ 720,000  $ 720,000
Customer relationships  —  120,000  120,000
Internal-use software  3,442  3,442  —
Net adjustment to Intangible assets, net  $ 3,442  $ 843,442  $ 840,000

C. Reflects the Goodwill to be recorded based on our preliminary purchase price allocation.

D. Adjustments to Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

Elimination of deferred rent $ (228)
Settlement of accrued expenses (14,230)
Accrual of transaction expenses (i) 33,418
Net adjustment to Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 18,960

i. Reflects the accrual of transaction costs estimated to be incurred after May 25, 2019, as these Simply Good Food's transaction costs are assumed to
have been incurred as of May 25, 2019. No adjustment was made to the unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations as the transaction
costs do not have a continuing impact.

E. Reflects the settlement of the current portion of Voyage’s historical indebtedness.

F. Reflects the settlement of historical long-term indebtedness and anticipated borrowings to fund the Acquisition (in thousands):

Settlement of historical subordinated debt $ (9,686)

Incremental borrowing under term loan 480,000
Less: current portion (4,800)
Less: original issue discount and capitalized debt issue costs (9,600)
Net adjustment to Long-term debt $ 455,914
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G. Reflects the settlement of Other long-term liabilities as follows (in thousands):

Elimination of long-term deferred rent $ (5,513)

Settlement of Montage success fee (12,613)
Net adjustment to Other long-term liabilities $ (18,126)

H. Reflects the proceeds received from the issuance of 14,010,508 shares of the Company's Common stock.

I. Represents the net adjustment to Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit) in conjunction with the Transactions calculated as follows (in thousands):

Elimination of historical Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit) $ 408,519
Non-capitalizable acquisition costs charged to equity(i) (17,079)
Net adjustment to Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit) $ 391,440

(i) No adjustment was made to the unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations as these transaction costs do not have a continuing impact.

J. Represents the elimination of the mandatorily redeemable preferred units as a result of the VMG Exit Payment.

K. Represents the adjustment to step-up inventory to its estimated fair value based on our preliminary purchase price allocation. This adjustment is not expected to have a
continuing impact to cost of goods sold, and therefore no adjustment was made to the pro forma statements of operations.

5. Unaudited Pro forma Combined Statements of Operations Adjustments:

A. Reflects expense related to retention awards granted. Simply Good Foods is in the process of assessing additional retention awards that will be granted to certain
employees of Quest, which are not deemed to be material to the unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations.

B. Reflects amortization of the acquired customer relationships based on the preliminary estimated fair value and 15-year useful life expected to be recorded as a result of the
Acquisition. Brand has an indefinite life resulting in no incremental amortization expense. Additionally, management estimates that the book value of acquired internal-
use software approximates fair value, resulting in no incremental amortization.

An increase or decrease of 10% in the estimated fair value of customer relationships would result in an increase or decrease of $0.8 million and $0.6 million of
amortization expense for the 52 weeks ended August 25, 2018 and for the 39 weeks ended May 25, 2019, respectively.

C. Reflects: (1) interest expense based upon an interest rate of 3.75% plus LIBOR on the New Term Loan; and (2) the amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs
associated with the New Term Loan as presented below. Debt issuance costs will be amortized over the life of the related debt using the effective interest method. A
summary of the effects of the adjustments on interest expense are as follows (in thousands):

  
52 weeks ended
August 25, 2018  

39 weeks ended
May 25, 2019

Estimated interest expense related to newly issued debt  $ (29,435)  $ (21,928)
Elimination of historical interest expense  5,853  4,215

Incremental interest expense  $ (23,582)  $ (17,713)

Impact of variable interest rate increase of 1/8%  $ (593)  $ (442)
Impact of variable interest rate decrease of 1/8%  $ 593  $ 442

D. Reflects Simply Good Foods' estimated share of taxes from Voyage which will be included in our consolidated tax provision upon acquisition. The pro forma tax
adjustment was calculated using an estimated blended statutory tax rate of 28%, and includes (1) Voyage's historical income (loss) before taxes and pro forma adjustments
and (2) the financing adjustments. The unaudited pro forma tax expense (benefit) does not purport to represent what our income tax expense (benefit) would have been if
the Transactions had occurred on August 27, 2017. Simply Good Foods taxes subsequent to the acquisition date will be impacted by an estimated net operating loss
carryforward of $0.4 million and a prepaid tax asset of $1.5 million related to a holding company transferred to Simply Good Foods as part of the Acquisition.

E. Represents the elimination of interest expense related to the mandatorily redeemable preferred units as a result of the VMG Exit Payment.

F. Represents the elimination of the gain (loss) related to the Montage derivative that was settled in connection with the Acquisition.

G. Reflects the elimination of transaction costs directly attributable to the Acquisition as they do not have a continuing impact.
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H. The unaudited pro forma combined basic and diluted earnings per share calculations are based on the basic and diluted weighted-average outstanding shares of Simply
Good Foods, after giving effect to the issuance of the Common Stock hereby as if the Common Stock were issued on August 27, 2017, the first day of Simply Good
Foods’ fiscal year 2018. The pro forma combined basic and diluted earnings per share does not give effect to any equity replacement awards or other equity incentive
awards that may be granted after the date of this filing, as Simply Good Foods is still in the early stages of determining such awards. Any awards that may be issued could
have a material impact to the unaudited pro forma combined basic and diluted earnings per share. The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share was
calculated as follows:

  
52 weeks ended
August 25, 2018  

39 weeks ended
May 25, 2019

Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares (Basic)     
Historical weighted average shares outstanding  70,582,149  80,362,978
Shares of common stock issued to finance the Acquisition  14,010,508  14,010,508

Pro forma basic weighted average shares  84,592,657  94,373,486

     
Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares (Diluted)     
Historical diluted weighted average shares outstanding  73,681,355  84,695,703
Shares of common stock issued to finance the Acquisition  14,010,508  14,010,508

Pro forma diluted weighted average shares outstanding  87,691,863  98,706,211

     
Pro Forma Earnings per Share     
Pro forma net income (in thousands)  $ 27,918  $ 39,913
Pro forma basic earnings per share  $ 0.33  $ 0.42
Pro forma diluted earnings per share  $ 0.32  $ 0.40
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